
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

February Board Meeting 
To be held at the offices of 

Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation 
2200 East Martin Luther King Jr. Blvd. 

Austin, TX 78702 

 
 

Thursday, February 15, 2018 
10:30 a.m. 



  

BOARD MEETING 
TEXAS STATE AFFORDABLE HOUSING CORPORATION 

To be held at the offices of  
Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation 

2200 East Martin Luther King Jr. Blvd 
Austin, Texas 78702 

February 15, 2018 at 10:30am 
  
 
 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER, ROLL CALL                                             Bob Jones 
CERTIFICATION OF QUORUM                            Chair 
 
The Board of Directors of Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation will meet to consider and possibly act on the following: 
     
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
PRESIDENT’S REPORT                      David Long 
 

Tab A: Homeownership Finance Report 
Tab B: Development Finance Report 
Tab C: Quarterly Compliance and Resident Services Reports 
Tab D: Monthly Financial Reports 

 
ACTION ITEMS IN OPEN MEETING: 
 
Tab 1 Presentation, Discussion and Possible Approval of Minutes of the Board Meeting held on December 14, 2017. 
 
Tab 2 Presentation, Discussion and Possible Approval of the Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation’s 2018 Annual Action Plan. 
 
Tab 3 Presentation, Discussion and Possible Approval of Action by the Corporation related to Texas Community Capital.  
 
Tab 4 Presentation and Discussion of, and Possible Approval to Publish for Public Comment, the Texas Foundations Fund Draft 2018 

Guidelines. 
 
Tab 5 Presentation, Discussion and Possible Approval of a $100,000 commitment from the Corporation as part of a grant application to 

the Rebuild Texas Fund to support a special disaster recovery round of the Texas Foundations Fund. 
 
Tab 6 Review, Discussion and Possible Approval of the 2017 Annual Performance Review of the President of the Corporation and 

related actions. 
 
Tab 7 Closed Executive Session – Discussion regarding the Evaluation and Annual Performance Review of the President of the   

Corporation 
 
CLOSED MEETING: 
 
Consultation with legal counsel on legal matters – Texas Government Code § 551.071 
Deliberation regarding purchase, exchange, lease, or value of real property – Texas Government Code § 551.072 
Deliberation regarding prospective gift or donation to the state or Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation – Texas Government Code § 551.073 
Personnel Matters – Texas Government Code § 551.074 
Implementation of security personnel or devices – Texas Government Code § 551.076 
Other matters authorized under the Texas Government Code 
 
ACTION ITEMS IN OPEN MEETING: 
 
Action in Open Meeting on Items Discussed in Closed Executive Session 
 
ADJOURN:  
  
Individuals who require auxiliary aids or services for this meeting should contact Laura Ross, ADA Responsible Employee, at 512-477-3560 or 
Relay Texas at 1-800-735-2989 at least two days before the meeting so that the appropriate arrangements can be made. 
 
Section 46.035 of the Texas Penal Code prohibits handgun licensees from carrying their handguns at government meetings such as this one.  This 
prohibition applies to both concealed carry and open carry by handgun licensees.  Handgun licensees are required by law to refrain from carrying 
their handguns at this meeting. 
 



  

Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation reserves the right to recess this meeting (without adjourning) and convene at a later stated time, if and 
to the extent allowed by law.  If Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation adjourns this meeting and reconvenes at a later time, the later meeting 
will be held in the same location as this meeting.  Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation also reserves the right to proceed into a closed 
meeting during the meeting in accordance with the Open Meetings Act, Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code. If permitted by the Open 
Meetings Act, Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code, any item on this Agenda to be discussed in open meeting may also be discussed by the 
Board (and any other authorized persons) in closed meeting. 



PRESIDENT’S REPORT 



Tab A 









Tab B 



Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation 
Development Finance Programs Report 

February 2018 

 
Affordable Communities of Texas Program 

Over the past two months, staff has been busy processing and submitting NSP home buyer applications 
to TDHCA. There are currently seven NSP properties under contract to home buyers. Three of those 
have been submitted for approval.  
 
In addition, staff is planning 2018 site visits to Local Partners and property sites.  In February, we will be 
traveling to Beaumont, Houston, Pearland and Wichita Falls. These visits are important for tracking 
progress on construction projects, training new staff at our Local Partners, and understanding market 
conditions first hand.  
 
We are also working with two potential new Local Partners in the Dallas area. Our longtime partner, 
Builders of Hope, has had to decrease their capacity for new construction activities, which leaves us with 
a need to find a new Local Partner for the Creekside subdivision, an NSP property.  Staff hopes to have 
one or more new Local Partners active in the subdivision the coming months.  
 
Working with our development partner, Diana McIver and Assoc., staff submitted a joint application for 
competitive 9% housing tax credits for the Park on 14th in Plano, Texas. The final plans propose the 
construction of 60 new rental units for a senior/elderly population. The competitive housing tax credit 
process takes several months to complete, with final awards typically announced at the end of July. If all 
goes well, we would anticipate breaking ground before the end of 2018 or first quarter of 2019.  
 
Finally, TSAHC and our Local Partner in the Rio Grande Valley, Affordable Homes of South Texas, have 
established a tentative plan to sell the one remaining ACT-Veteran’s property in Harlingen, and we hope 
to have that property out of TSAHC’s control by mid-February.  
 
Here is a summary of this month’s portfolio numbers:  
 

Program Portfolio as of  
October 1, 2017 Acquired Sold Current 

Portfolio Current Portfolio Value 

ACT Land Bank 60 0 3 57 $716,209.00 
ACT Land Trust 1 0 0 1 $650,000.00 
Texas NSP 205 0 1 204 $2,867,583.10 
Veteran's Initiative 1 0 0 1 $33,210.00 
Totals 267 0 4 263 $4,267,002.10 
 

Texas Housing Impact Fund 

Program activity this past month has been focused on existing loans and planning for the upcoming 
year. The AHA! at Briarcliff project has not yet been awarded funding from the Texas Department of 
Housing and Community Affairs (TDHCA), but the Borrower anticipates having the loan presented at the 
(Feb/March) TDHCA board meeting. Once they receive approval from TDHCA, we anticipate setting a 
closing date for their loan with TSAHC.  



Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation 
Development Finance Programs Report 

February 2018 

 
The Chicon, a 28 unit condo project in Austin, is nearing completion of its first phase and sales of the 
first round of units should begin in March. Staff is also planning a tour of the project in late February for 
Impact Fund investor, Texas Capital Bank.  
 
Multifamily Bond Program 

Little activity occurred in our bond programs this past month. The staff at Dominium Companies, the 
developer of the Beckley Townhomes project that the Board induced in Dec. 2018, have been focused 
on the 9% competitive application process, but intend to move forward with the project again in March 
or April.  We’ve also been approached by two additional developers about potential projects for this 
year.  



Tab C 



Compliance Report QTR 4
 - 2017

Pine Club (Beaumont) Ridgewood (Huntsville) Saddlewood Club (Bryan)
LI Occupancy 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
Total (100% Required) 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

Tealwood Club (Wichita Falls) Willowgreen (Houston) Woodglen Park (Dallas)
LI Occupancy 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
Total (100% Required) 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

Commonwealth Cezar Chavez Foundation 
White Rock (San Antonio) Aguila Oaks (San Antonio)

VLI Occupancy (20% Required) 23.8% 20.2%
LI Occupancy 80.1% 78.3%
Total (75% Required) 80.1% 78.3%

Odyssey Properties DHI Woodside Texas Housing Foundation
Marshall Meadows (San Antonio) Woodside Village (Palestine) Gateway Northwest (Georgetown)

LI Occupancy 51.6% 100.0% 96.1%
Total (40% Required) 51.6% 100.0% 96.1%

GESC Mary Lee Foundation
Rita Blanca (Dalhart) The Willows (Austin)

VLI Occupancy (20% Required) 39.2% 95.3%
LI Occupancy 100% 100.0%
Total (100% Required) 100% 100.0%

Texas Housing Foundation
Palladium Midland

VLI Occupancy  (40% Required) 78.8%
LI Occupancy  (78% Required) 78.8%

Total (78% Required) 78.8%

Steele St. James Peoples Steele St. James Peoples Steele Brooks Manor
Peoples El Shaddai (Dallas) St James Manor (Dallas) Brooks Manor (West Columbia)

ELI Occupancy  (5% Required) 19.0% 20.0% 18%
LI Occupancy  (40% Required) 100.0% 100.0% 100%

Total (40% Required) 100.0% 100.0% 100%

Chaparral Village (Odessa) Cove Village (Copperas Cove) El Nido (El Paso)
LI Occupancy 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
Total (100% Required) 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

Garden  (Lubbock)  High Plains (Lubbock) Jose Antonio Escajeda (El Paso)
LI Occupancy 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
Total (100% Required) 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

Los Ebanos (Brownsville) River Park (Lampasas Peppertree (Fort Worth)
LI Occupancy 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
Total (100% Required) 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

Salem Village (Victoria) Sierra Vista (El Paso) Spring Terrace (Amarillo)
LI Occupancy 100.0% 100.0% 100%
Total (100% Required) 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

Win-Lin Village (Amarillo)
LI Occupancy 100.0%
Total (100% Required) 100.0%

Quarterly Compliance Status for TSAHC
As of the 4th Quarter Ending December 31, 2017

Notes: 

DALCOR 

Rainbow

1 of 1



Resident Services Report QTR 4 2017

Pine Club (Beaumont) Ridgewood (Huntsville) Saddlewood Club (Bryan)
Number of Services 

Required 6 6 6
Number of Services 

Provided 6 8 11

Tealwood Club (Wichita Falls) Willowgreen (Houston) Woodglen Park I & II (Dallas)
Number of Services 

Required 6 6 6
Number of Services 

Provided 9 12 15

Commonwealth Cesar Chavez Foundation GESC Texas Housing Foundation

White Rock (San Antonio) Aguila Oaks (San Antonio) Rita Blanca (Dalhart) Midland Palladium 
Number of Services 

Required 6 6 6 6
Number of Services 

Provided 25 18 9 12

Odyssey Properties Mary Lee Foundation Texas Housing Foundation DHI Woodside Associates, LLC

Marshall Meadows (San Antonio) The Willows (Austin) Gateway Northwest (Georgetown) Woodside Village (Palestine) 
Number of Services 

Required 6 5 6 6
Number of Services 

Provided 9 23 6 10

Steele St. James Peoples Steele St. James Peoples

 Peoples El Shaddai (Dallas) St James Manor (Dallas)
Number of Services 

Required 12 12
Number of Services 

Provided 8 8

Chaparral Village (Odessa) Cove Village (Copperas Cove) El Nido (El Paso) Garden Apartments (Lubbock) 
Number of Services 

Required 5 5 5 5
Number of Services 

Provided 16 17 13 17

High Plains (Lubbock)  Jose Antonio Escajeda (El Paso) Los Ebanos (Brownsville) Peppertree (Fort Worth)
Number of Services 

Required 5 5 5 5
Number of Services 

Provided 13 13 14 14

River Park (Lampasas) Salem Village (Victoria) Sierra Vista (El Paso) Spring Terrace (Amarillo)
Number of Services 

Required 5 5 5 5
Number of Services 

Provided 12 19 13 21

Win-Lin Village (Amarillo)
Number of Services 

Required 5
Number of Services 

Provided 16

TSAHC  -   Quarterly Resident Services Summary
As of the 4th Quarter Ending December 31, 2017

DALCOR

Rainbow Housing

Notes: Steele St James and Peoples are not meeting  the resident service requirements. 

1 of 7



Property Type of Service Description Provider

Number 
of 

Attende
es Date Provided

Points 
Assigned

Aguila Oaks After School Program Out-of-school time activities geared toward students from Cesar Chavez Foundation 15 10/2/2017 2
Health & Nutrition Educational activities that promote understanding, attitudes, Cesar Chavez Foundation 15 10/5/2017 1
Fitness and Exercise Fitness and exercise classes to educate on various programs. Cesar Chavez Foundation 15 10/2/2017 1
Computer Literacy Activities include basic to proficient computer skills, web Cesar Chavez Foundation 15 10/3/2017 1
Onsite Library A childrenâ€™s library will be available within the properties learning center. Studentâ€™s ages 5 to 18 years of age will be able to check out book for their reading pleasure, school assignments, etc. Library books held within the learning center will be grade leve l appropriate and range from fiction, non-fiction, science fiction, etc.Cesar Chavez Foundation 6 10/2/2017 1

Chaparral Village Career Services Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module:  Microsoft WordRHAC 80 10/2/2017 1
Financial Skills Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module: Art of BudgetingRHAC 80 10/2/2017 1
Community Awareness Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module: Breast Cancer AwarenessRHAC 80 10/5/2017 1
Medical and Health Services Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module: Eat Right Grow StrongRHAC 80 10/19/2017 1

Cove Village Career Services Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module:  Microsoft WordRHAC 50 10/2/2017 1
Financial Skills Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module: Art of BudgetingRHAC 50 10/3/2017 1
Community Awareness Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module: Breast Cancer AwarenessRHAC 50 10/5/2017 1
Medical and Health Services Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module: Eat Right Grow StrongRHAC 50 10/19/2017 1
Direct Support Rent Referrals Holy Family Catholic Church, Refuge Corporation, Hill County Community Action6 10/13/2017 1
Direct Support Utility Referrals Holy Family Catholic Church, Hill County Community Action5 10/13/2017 1
Transportation Services Bus Passes RHAC 1 10/13/2017 1

El Nido Apartments Career Services Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module:  Microsoft WordRHAC 104 10/2/2017 1
Financial Skills Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module: Art of BudgetingRHAC 104 10/3/2017 1
Community Awareness Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module: Breast Cancer AwarenessRHAC 104 10/5/2017 1
Medical and Health Services Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module: Eat Right Grow StrongRHAC 104 10/19/2017 1
Direct Support Job Search Referrals El Paso, CWJC, Goodwill Industries, Davis L. Carrasco Job Corps Center, Texas Workforce Solutions1 10/17/2017 1

Garden Apartments Career Services Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module:  Microsoft WordRHAC 62 10/2/2017 1
Financial Skills Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module: Art of BudgetingRHAC 62 10/3/2017 1
Community Awareness Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module: Breast Cancer AwarenessRHAC 62 10/5/2017 1
Medical and Health Services Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module: Eat Right Grow StrongRHAC 62 10/19/2017 1
Direct Support Rent Referrals Lubbock COunty General Assistance, Salvation Army, Neighborhood House, Across the Street Outreach3 10/24/2017 1
Direct Support Utility Referrals Catholic Family Services, Salvation Army, Neighborhood House, Across the Street Outreach2 10/26/2017 1
Transportation Services Bus Passes RHAC 1 10/26/2017 1

Gateway Northwest Personal development Book club Self 4 10/5/2017 1
Transportation srvices Free/discounted public transportation Self 4 10/5/2017 1

High Plains Apartments Career Services Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module:  Microsoft WordRHAC 50 10/2/2017 1
Financial Skills Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module: Art of BudgetingRHAC 50 10/3/2017 1
Community Awareness Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module: Breast Cancer AwarenessRHAC 50 10/5/2017 1
Medical and Health Services Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module: Eat Right Grow StrongRHAC 50 10/19/2017 1

Jose Antonio Escajeda Career Services Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module:  Microsoft WordRHAC 94 10/2/2017 1
Financial Skills Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module: Art of BudgetingRHAC 94 10/3/2017 1
Community Awareness Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module: Breast Cancer AwarenessRHAC 94 10/5/2017 1
Medical and Health Services Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module: Eat Right Grow StrongRHAC 94 10/19/2017 1
Direct Support Rent Referrals El Paso General Assistance, Santo Nino De Atocha Church1 10/3/2017 1

Los Ebanos Apartments Career Services Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module:  Microsoft WordRHAC 65 10/2/2017 1
Financial Skills Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module: Art of BudgetingRHAC 65 10/3/2017 1
Community Awareness Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module: Breast Cancer AwarenessRHAC 65 10/5/2017 1
Medical and Health Services Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module: Eat Right Grow StrongRHAC 65 10/19/2017 1

Marshall Meadows Afterschool Program afterschool program for youth 6-17 Marshall Meadows 1 10/3/2017 2
Financial Stability CPS Energy Customer Response Unit came to present their available discount programs and answer any questionsCPS Energy 8 10/11/2017 1
National Night Out A night for the community to  promote community safety Marshall Meadows 57 10/3/2017 1

Midland Palladium Financial Should I buy it or finance it? Robbie Amerson 0 10/5/2017 1
Health and Wellness Diet and Aging Management Staff 0 10/12/2017 1
Financial Winterize Your Car Management Staff 0 10/26/2017 1
Career Remaining Professional in stressful situations Management Staff 0 10/16/2017 1

Peoples El Shaddai Onsite Library Check out books from office. Onsite Library-Peoples 4 10/16/2017 1
Cleaning Supply Safety Class/HousekeepingTraining how to clean, and be safe with chemicals. Onsite Staff- Housekeeping 3 10/20/2017 1
Fire Safety Fire safety, gun safety, cycle safety and water safey Staff 0 10/27/2017 1

Peppertree Acres Career Services Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module:  Microsoft WordRHAC 148 10/2/2017 1
Financial Skills Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module: Art of BudgetingRHAC 148 10/3/2017 1
Community Awareness Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module: Breast Cancer AwarenessRHAC 148 10/5/2017 1
Medical and Health Services Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module: Eat Right Grow StrongRHAC 148 10/19/2017 1

Pine Club Valet Trash Provide trash service 3 times a week Pine Club Staff 232 10/1/2017 1
Business center/Fax/Copy Provide fax and copy to residents Pine Club Staff 2 10/1/2017 1

Ridgewood Valet Trash Provide service twice per week Ridgewood Staff 232 10/1/2017 1
Notary Provide notary services to all residents and applicants Cathy Newvine 3 10/1/2017 1
Business Center/Fax/Copy Provide fax and copy to all residents Ridgewood Staff 2 10/1/2017 1

Rita Blanca Library Library Rosalinda Davila 13 10/6/2017 1
Food/Diaper Pantry Weekly Food and Diaper Pantry Rosalinda Davila 26 10/9/2017 2

October Resident Services



Property Type of Service Description Provider

Number 
of 

Attende
es Date Provided

Points 
Assigned

October Resident Services

River Park Village Career Services Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module:  Microsoft WordRHAC 50 10/2/2017 1
Financial Skills Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module: Art of BudgetingRHAC 50 10/3/2017 1
Community Awareness Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module: Breast Cancer AwarenessRHAC 50 10/5/2017 1
Medical and Health Services Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module: Eat Right Grow StrongRHAC 50 10/19/2017 1

Saddlewood Club Crime Safety National Night Out Bryan PD and Saddlewood Staff 0 10/3/2017 1
Education Breast Cancer Awareness and Bingo Saddlewood Staff 7 10/25/2017 1
Parenting Class Prescription Drug Misuse/Abuse and Your Kids Project Unity- Michelle 6 10/24/2017 1
Business Center/Fax/Copy Provide fax and copy service to residents Saddlewood Staff 5 10/1/2017 1

Saint James Manor Cleaning Supply Safety Safety with cleaning Supplies/chemicals and How to. Staff 6 10/20/2017 1
Fire Safety Safety with guns, Fire safety, safety with cycles, Safety with waterStaff Onsite 5 10/27/2017 1
Library Check out books Staff 1 10/16/2017 1

Salem Village Career Services Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module:  Microsoft WordRHAC 105 10/2/2017 1
Financial Skills Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module: Art of BudgetingRHAC 105 10/3/2017 1
Community Awareness Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module: Breast Cancer AwarenessRHAC 105 10/5/2017 1
Medical and Health Services Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module: Eat Right Grow StrongRHAC 105 10/19/2017 1
Direct Support Utility Referrals Community Action, Salvation Army, Victoria Christian Assistance Ministry, Our Lady of Lourdes Catholic Chirch, St. Mary's Catholic Church1 10/24/2017 1
Direct Support GED Referral RHAC 1 10/24/2017 1
Children Services Tutoring Mid-Cost Family Services 3 10/3/2017 1
Trasportation Services Bus Passes RHAC 3 10/24/2017 1

Sierra Vista Career Services Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module:  Microsoft WordRHAC 106 10/2/2017 1
Financial Skills Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module: Art of BudgetingRHAC 106 10/3/2017 1
Community Awareness Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module: Breast Cancer AwarenessRHAC 106 10/5/2017 1
Medical and Health Services Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module: Eat Right Grow StrongRHAC 106 10/19/2017 1

Spring Terrace Career Services Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module:  Microsoft WordRHAC 50 10/2/2017 1
Financial Skills Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module: Art of BudgetingRHAC 50 10/3/2017 1
Community Awareness Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module: Breast Cancer AwarenessRHAC 50 10/5/2017 1
Medical and Health Services Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module: Eat Right Grow StrongRHAC 50 10/19/2017 1
Direct Support Rent Referrals Salvation Army,  Washington Ave Christian Church, Beautiful Savior Lutheran Church & Panhandle Community Services2 10/23/2017 1
Direct Support Utility Referrals Community Outreach, Salvation Army,  Panhandle Community Services & Central Church of Christ: Community Outreach3 10/23/2017 1
Transportation Services Bus Passes RHAC 1 10/27/2017 1
Children Services Kids Club Mission Amarillo 6 10/17/2017 1

Tealwood Club Valet Trash Service Door to door pickup-twice a week Tealwood Apartments 180 10/1/2017 1
Business Center/Fax/Copy Computer Resource Tealwood Apartments 180 10/1/2017 1

The Willows Food Bank Provided food bank services to 41 tenants weekly on  10/5/17, 10/12/17, 10/19/17, & 10/26/17MLF 164 10/5/2017 2
Direct Support Financial Caseworker assisted tenants with paying rent, phone bills, electric bill, balancing check book MLF 9 10/2/2017 1
Direct Support Medical Caseworker picked up tenants Rx, called pharmacy, & did a welfare checks on tenants MLF 7 10/3/2017 1
Personal Development Caseworker counseled tenants regarding various issue MLF 27 10/2/2017 1
Lending Library 3 tenants checked out tapes & DVD'S MLF 3 10/10/2017 1
MLF Transportion Caseworker drove tenants to HEB, pharmacy & store, Walmart, picked tenant up after car broke down and dropped him off at the Willows MLF 15 10/2/2017 1

White Rock Apartments Budgeting Money Matters 365 Learn TV 220 10/1/2017 1
Environmental Education Green Living 365 Learn TV 233 10/1/2017 1
Educational Tutoring Education Scholastic Tutoring 365 Learn TV 223 10/1/2017 1
Health Health and Fitness 365 Learn TV 248 10/1/2017 1
Technology Technology 365 Learn TV 232 10/1/2017 1
Library Assistant Provide books and magazines and adult coloring books to relieve stress.  You can bring in books or magazines and take a book or magazine to readWhite Rock Library Assistant 15 10/31/2017 1
Parenting Parenting 365 Learn TV 214 10/1/2017 1
Breast Cancer Awareness Come by the office for information on breast cancer awareness and pick up your free hope bracelet to show your supportWhite Rock Staff 18 10/31/2017 1

Willow Green Valet services Door to door  trash pick up service we provide to all resident on Tuesday and Thursday Willow green 331 10/1/2017 1
Bussiness center And service we provide to all residents and applicants Willow green staff 4 10/1/2017 1
Crime Prevention Door to door flyers internet safety Willow green Staff 331 10/1/2017 1
Notary Service And service we provide to all residents and applicants Willow green staffE 1 10/1/2017 1

Win-Lin Village Apartments Career Services Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module:  Microsoft WordRHAC 50 10/2/2017 1
Financial Skills Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module: Art of BudgetingRHAC 50 10/3/2017 1
Community Awareness Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module: Breast Cancer AwarenessRHAC 50 10/5/2017 1
Medical and Health Services Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module: Eat Right Grow StrongRHAC 50 10/19/2017 1
Direct Support Utility Assistance Salvation Army, Panhandle Community Services1 10/24/2017 1
Transportation Services Bus Passes RHAC 1 10/24/2017 1

Woodglen Park Valet trash Valet trash service for residents Woodglen Park 232 10/31/2017 1
Notary Onsite notary for the community use Woodglen Park 4 10/31/2017 1
Crime Watch Meeting Crime watch meeting for the community DPD 7 10/11/2017 1
Business Center Provide computers, printers and internet for the community useWoodglen Park 25 10/31/2017 1
Fitness Center Provide fitness center for the community to promote and maintain a healthy way of livingWoodglen Park 20 10/31/2017 1

Woodside Village Job Search Internet job Search Shannon Bradley 0 10/10/2017 1
Holliday Safety Tips Holiday Safety Shannon Bradley 0 10/12/2017 1
Resume 101 Resume tips Shannon Bradley 0 10/24/2017 1



Property Type of Service Description Provider
Number of 
Attendees

Date 
Provided

Points 
Assigned

Aguila Oaks Health & Nutrition Educational activities that promote understanding, attitudes, Cesar Chavez Foundation 12 11/2/2017 1
Fitness & Exercise Fitness and exercise classes to educate on various programs. Cesar Chavez Foundation 13 11/3/2017 1
Computer Literacy Activities include basic to proficient computer skills, web browsing and informational searches, email account creation, typing and document formatting. The Computer Literacy Training youth classes will be offered every Tuesday. Classes will be offered from 6:00 pm to 6:45 pm to resident youth from grades 4th through 12th. Students will be required to sign in and out of program including their apartment number.Cesar Chavez Foundation 13 11/6/2017 1
Onsite Library A children's library will be available within the properties learning center. Students ages 5 to 18 years of age will be able to check out book for their reading pleasure, school assignments, etc. Library books held within the learning center will be grade level appropriate and range from fiction, non-fiction, science fiction, etc.Cesar Chavez Foundation 6 11/1/2017 1
Parent Education A course or class that can be followed to correct and improve a personal parenting skills. Such classes may be general, covering the most common issues parents may encounter, or specific, for infants, toddlers, children and teenagers.Cesar Chavez Foundation 9 11/17/2017 1
After School Program Out-of-school time activities geared toward students from ages K-12th grade. They may include after school programs, clubs, child care, etc. The After School Care program will be opened daily with the exception of holidays and special school day observances. The After School Program will run 180 days per year following the regular school days calendar. Program will run from 3:15 pm to 5:45 pm, Monday through Friday. Students in grade Kindergarten through 5th may participate. Families must register each of their students into the program. Students will be required to sign in and out each day they attend.Cesar Chavez Foundation 9 11/1/2017 2

Chaparral Village Community Awareness Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module:  Vegetable Container GardeningRHAC 80 11/2/2017 1
Medical and Health Services Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module: Green and Healthy LivingRHAC 80 11/6/2017 1
Career Services Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module: 6 Traits of Successful EmployeesRHAC 80 11/7/2017 1
Financial Skills Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module: 10 Steps to Buying a HomeRHAC 80 11/13/2017 1
Direct Support Rent Referrals Permian Basin Mission, Odessa Christian Faith Center, Catholic Charities1 11/29/2017 1

Cove Village Medical and Health Services Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module:  Vegetable Container GardeningRHAC 50 11/2/2017 1
Career Services Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module: 6 Traits of Successful EmployeesRHAC 50 11/7/2017 1
Financial Skills Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module: 10 Steps to Buying a HomeRHAC 50 11/13/2017 1
Community Awareness Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module: How to Bully Proof Your YouthRHAC 50 11/27/2017 1
Direct Support Rent Referral Holy Family Catholic Church, Refuge Corporation, Hill County Community Action6 11/14/2017 1
Direct Support Utility Referral Holy Family Catholic Church, Hill County Community Action4 11/14/2017 1

El Nido Apartments Medical and Health Services Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module:  Vegetable Container GardeningRHAC 104 11/2/2017 1
Career Services Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module: 6 Traits of Successful EmployeesRHAC 104 11/7/2017 1
Financial Skills Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module: 10 Steps to Buying a HomeRHAC 104 11/13/2017 1
Community Awareness Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module: How to Bully Proof Your YouthRHAC 104 11/27/2017 1

Garden Apartments Community Awareness Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module:  Vegetable Container GardeningRHAC 62 11/2/2017 1
Medical and Health Services Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module: Green and Healthy LivingRHAC 62 11/6/2017 1
Career Services Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module: 6 Traits of Successful EmployeesRHAC 62 11/7/2017 1
Medical and Health Services Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module: Get ActiveRHAC 62 11/9/2017 1
Financial Skills Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module: 10 Steps to Buying a HomeRHAC 62 11/13/2017 1

Gateway Northwest Personal Development Book club self 5 11/2/2017 1
Personal Development Counseling services (preparing for the stress of the holidays) self 5 11/2/2017 1

High Plains Apartments Community Awareness Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module:  Vegetable Container GardeningRHAC 50 11/2/2017 1
Medical and Health Services Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module: Green and Healthy LivingRHAC 50 11/6/2017 1
Career Services Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module: 6 Traits of Successful EmployeesRHAC 50 11/7/2017 1
Financial Skills Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module: 10 Steps to Buying a HomeRHAC 50 11/13/2017 1

Jose Antonio Escajeda Medical and Health Services Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module:  Vegetable Container GardeningRHAC 94 11/2/2017 1
Career Services Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module: 6 Traits of Successful EmployeesRHAC 94 11/7/2017 1
Financial Skills Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module: 10 Steps to Buying a HomeRHAC 94 11/13/2017 1
Community Awareness Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module: How to Bully Proof Your YouthRHAC 94 11/27/2017 1

Los Ebanos Apartments Community Awareness Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module:  Vegetable Container GardeningRHAC 65 11/2/2017 1
Medical and Health Services Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module: Green and Healthy LivingRHAC 65 11/6/2017 1
Career Services Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module: 6 Traits of Successful EmployeesRHAC 65 11/7/2017 1
Financial Skills Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module: 10 Steps to Buying a HomeRHAC 65 11/13/2017 1
Direct Support Rent Referrals Salvation Army, START Center, Catholic Charities 2 11/30/2017 1
Direct Support Utility Referrals Community Action Corporation of South Texas, Catholic Charities, East Multi Service Center2 11/30/2017 1

Marshall Meadows Heath/Nutrition Chronic disease self-management class HCS 6 11/15/2017 1
Homeownership Habitat for humanity - Learn about home ownership HCS 2 11/14/2017 1
Job Training Vocational Training presentation - project quest HCS 5 11/15/2017 1
After School Program Enrichment activities for kids, snacks, arts & crafts, and homework assistance.HCS 4 11/1/2017 2

Midland Palladium Health Dealing with the stress of the holidays Robbie Amerson 0 11/2/2017 1
Finance How to File Your Tax Return Liberty Tax 0 11/8/2017 1
Career Multi-Tasking and Organization Robbie Amerson 0 11/14/2017 1
Health Mental Health is just as important as Physical Health Management 0 11/17/2017 1

Peoples El Shaddai Cleaning Class How to Clean, organize home, hygiene Office Staff 2 11/30/2017 1
Fire Safety Fire safety rules, cycle safety, gun safety and water safety Office Staff 2 11/30/2017 1
Library On-site Library for residents to check out books Office Staff 0 11/10/2017 1

Peppertree Acres Medical and Health Services Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module:  Vegetable Container GardeningRHAC 148 11/2/2017 1
Career Services Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module: 6 Traits of Successful EmployeesRHAC 148 11/7/2017 1
Financial Skills Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module: 10 Steps to Buying a HomeRHAC 148 11/13/2017 1
Community Awareness Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module: How to Bully Proof Your YouthRHAC 148 11/27/2017 1
Direct Support Rent Referrals Salvation Army, Tarrant Co. DHS, Broadway Baptist Church, South Central Alliance, Community Action Partners & Catholic Charities1 11/13/2017 1
Direct Support Utility Referrals Salvation Army, Catholic Charities, Tarrant CO. DHS, Broadway Baptist Church and South Central Alliance4 11/13/2017 1

Pine Club Legal Identity Theft Catherine Howard w/ Legal Shield 9 11/6/2017 1

Ridgewood Safety Meeting Community Meeting- Huntsville happenings and Holiday Safety Officer Perkins 4 11/30/2017 1
Business Center Provide notary to all residents and applicants. Provided fax and copy services to all residents. Cathy Newvine 7 11/1/2017 1

Rita Blanca Library Library Rosalinda Davila 14 11/3/2017 1
Food/Diaper Pantry Weekly Food and Diaper Pantry Rosalinda Davila 13 11/20/2017 2

River Park Village Medical and Health Services Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module:  Vegetable Container GardeningRHAC 50 11/2/2017 1
Career Services Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module: 6 Traits of Successful EmployeesRHAC 50 11/7/2017 1
Financial Skills Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module: 10 Steps to Buying a HomeRHAC 50 11/13/2017 1
Community Awareness Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module: How to Bully Proof Your YouthRHAC 50 11/27/2017 1

Saddlewood Club Business Center Computer center for residents and applicants. Copy and fax services includedSaddlewood Staff 10 11/1/2017 1
Parenting Class Getting up on Time Michelle Boudin w/ Project Unity 2 11/21/2017 1

November Resident Services



Property Type of Service Description Provider
Number of 
Attendees

Date 
Provided

Points 
Assigned

November Resident Services

Saint James Manor Cleaning Class Teaching how to clean, and how to upkeep home, and hygiene Office Staff 4 11/30/2017 1
Fire Safety Teaching about fire safety Office Staff 0 11/30/2017 1
Library Onsite library - check out books Office Staff 0 11/10/2017 1

Salem Village Medical and Health Services Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module:  Vegetable Container GardeningRHAC 105 11/2/2017 1
Career Services Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module: 6 Traits of Successful EmployeesRHAC 105 11/7/2017 1
Financial Skills Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module: 10 Steps to Buying a HomeRHAC 105 11/13/2017 1
Community Awareness Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module: How to Bully Proof Your YouthRHAC 105 11/27/2017 1
Direct Support Utility Referrals Community Action, Salvation Army, Victoria Christian Assistance Ministry Our Lady of Lourdes Catholic Church St. Mary's Catholic Church2 11/14/2017 1
Children Services Tutoring Mid-Coast Family Services 9 11/7/2017 1

Sierra Vista Community Awareness Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module:  Vegetable Container GardeningRHAC 106 11/2/2017 1
Medical and Health Services Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module: Green and Healthy LivingRHAC 106 11/6/2017 1
Career Services Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module: 6 Traits of Successful EmployeesRHAC 106 11/7/2017 1
Financial Skills Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module: 10 Steps to Buying a HomeRHAC 106 11/13/2017 1
Direct Support Utility Referrals El Paso General Assistance, St. Stephen Catholic Church, El Paso Community Action1 11/20/2017 1

Spring Terrace Community Awareness Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module:  Vegetable Container GardeningRHAC 50 11/2/2017 1
Medical and Health Services Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module: Green and Healthy LivingRHAC 50 11/6/2017 1
Career Services Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module: 6 Traits of Successful EmployeesRHAC 50 11/7/2017 1
Financial Skills Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module: 10 Steps to Buying a HomeRHAC 50 11/13/2017 1
Direct Support Rent Referral Salvation Army, Washington Ave Christian Church, Beautiful Savior Lutheran Church and Panhandle Community Services2 11/27/2017 1
Direct Support Utility Referrals Community Outreach, Salvation Army, Panhandle Community Services and Cent Church of Christ4 11/27/2017 1
Transportation Services Bus Passes RHAC 2 11/29/2017 1
Children Services Kids Club Mission Amarillo 7 11/14/2017 1

Tealwood Club Valet Trash Service Door to door pickup-twice a week Tealwood Apartments 180 11/1/2017 1
Business Center Computer Resource (Fax, Copy, Notary) Tealwood Apartments 180 11/1/2017 1
Resume Workshop Resume Workshop Region 9 6 11/16/2017 1

The Willows Food Bank Provided food bank services to 37 tenants weekly on 11/2/17, 11/9/17, 11/16/17, & 11/30/17 MLF 146 11/2/2017 2
Direct Support Financial Caseworker paid phone bill, rent, & electric bill  for disabled tenants, meet with tenant's money manager, provided list of providers to tenant for rental assistance MLF 8 11/2/2017 1
Direct Support Medical Caseworker picked up Rx for disabled tenants, arranged tenant's Rx  prescription for durable medical equipment, made a doctors appt. for tenant, counted tenants meds., scheduled an in home nurses visit, helped tenant to setup a weekly med-minder calendar, scheduled a ultrasound exam for tenant, downloaded tenant's medical docs, called Dr's office on behalf of tenant, reviewed tenant's medical insurance paperwork, did a welfare check on tenant, helped visually impaired tenant with paperwork, took tenant to get influenza & pneumonia shot MLF 18 11/2/2017 1
Medicaid & Medicare Caseworker downloaded SS awards letter, contacted SSA reg. tenant's status of RSDI, assisted tenant with submitted renewal for tenants Medicare Savings PlanMLF 3 11/1/2017 1
Personal Development Caseworker counseled tenants on various issues MLF 21 11/1/2017 1
Lending Library Tenant used library to meet with counselor, tenant meet with money manager MLF 2 11/16/2017 1
Metro Access & STS Caseworker assisted tenant with Metro Access renewal application, made reservation for disabled tenant, printed bus route info. , got disabled reduced fare cardMLF 5 11/16/2017 1

White Rock Apartments Budgeting Money Matters 365 Learn TV 221 11/1/2017 1
Environmental Education Green Living 365 Learn TV 221 11/1/2017 1
Educational/Tutoring Education Scholastic Tutoring 365 Learn TV 241 11/1/2017 1
Kids Crafts Once a month or more we have activities for kids.  These activities change monthly and might be educational or working on craftsWhite Rock Staff 11 11/10/2017 1
Health Health and Fitness 365 Learn TV 251 11/1/2017 1
Library Assistant Provide books and magazines and adult coloring books to relieve stress.  You can bring in books or magazines and take a book or magazine to read.White Rock Library Assistant 18 11/30/2017 1
Parenting Parenting 365 Learn TV 194 11/1/2017 1
Shelter Donation Collections Collect items to be donated to local SAMM Shelter White Rock Staff 12 11/30/2017 1
Report Card Rewards We will reward each student with a price for good grades.  At the end of each 9 weeks, students will bring in report cards to be rewarded for good grades White Rock Staff 6 11/30/2017 1

Willow Green VALET /TRASH SERVICES A service we provide fro our residents Willow Green Staff 323 11/1/2017 1
Business center A services we provide for prospect and resident. Fax, scan, and Notary included. Willow Green Staff 5 11/1/2017 1
CRIME PREVENTION flyers door to door holiday safety Willow Green Staff 321 11/1/2017 1
Notary Service Notary Service Gayle Harris 1 11/1/2017 1

Win-Lin Village Apartments Medical and Health Services Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module:  Vegetable Container GardeningRHAC 50 11/2/2017 1
Career Services Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module: 6 Traits of Successful EmployeesRHAC 50 11/7/2017 1
Financial Skills Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module: 10 Steps to Buying a HomeRHAC 50 11/13/2017 1
Community Awareness Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module: How to Bully Proof Your YouthRHAC 50 11/27/2017 1
Direct Support Utility Referral Salvation Army, Panhandle Community Services 1 11/14/2017 1

Woodglen Park Valet Trash Valet trash for resident Woodglen Park 232 11/30/2017 1
Crime Watch Meeting Crime watch meeting for community DPD 6 11/8/2017 1
Business Center Provide computers, printers, and internet for community use. Including fax, copy, and notary access.Woodglen Park 20 11/30/2017 1
Health Care day Free HIV testing AIDS ARMS 15 11/10/2017 1
Notary Notary Woodglen Park 6 11/30/2017 1

Woodside Village Resume Job Search Online Job search Shannon Badley 0 11/7/2017 1
Tax Preparation Class Tax Prep Shannon Bradley 1 11/15/2017 1
Community Garden Soil prep Shannon Bradley 1 11/17/2017 1
Health and Nutritional Eating Green Shannon Bradley 0 11/20/2017 1



Property Type of Service Description Provider
Number of 
Attendees

Date 
Provided

Points 
Assigned

Aguila Oaks Health and Nutrition Educational activities that promote understanding, attitudes, Cesar Chavez Foundation 13 12/1/2017 1
Fitness & Exercise Fitness and exercise classes to educate on various programs. Cesar Chavez Foundation 13 12/6/2017 1
Computer Literacy Activities include basic to proficient computer skills, web browsing and informational searches, email account creation, typing and document formatting. The Computer Literacy Training youth classes will be offered every Tuesday. Classes will be offered from 6:00 pm to 6:45 pm to resident youth from grades 4th through 12th. Students will be required to sign in and out of program including their apartment number.Cesar Chavez Foundation 13 12/7/2017 1
After School Program Out-of-school time activities geared toward students from Cesar Chavez Foundation 13 12/4/2017 2

Chaparral Village Community Awareness Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module:  Adult Alcohol AwarenessRHAC 80 12/4/2017 1
Career Services Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module: 6 Traits of Successful EmployeesRHAC 80 12/5/2017 1
Financial Skills Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module: Understanding Your Financial RelationshipRHAC 80 12/12/2017 1
Medical and Health Services Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module: Healthy Eating through the HolidaysRHAC 80 12/14/2017 1
Direct Support Rent Referrals Permian Basin Mission, Odessa Christian Faith Center, Catholic Charities1 12/14/2017 1
Direct Support Utility Referrals Permian Basin Mission, Salvation Army, Catholic Charities1 12/14/2017 1
Transportation Services Bus Passes RHAC 1 12/14/2017 1

Cove Village Community Awareness Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module:  Adult Alcohol AwarenessRHAC 50 12/4/2017 1
Career Services Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module: 6 Traits of Successful EmployeesRHAC 50 12/5/2017 1
Financial Skills Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module: Understanding Your Financial RelationshipRHAC 50 12/12/2017 1
Medical and Health Services Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module: Benefits of ExerciseRHAC 50 12/21/2017 1

El Nido Apartments Community Awareness Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module:  Adult Alcohol AwarenessRHAC 104 12/4/2017 1
Career Services Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module: 6 Traits of Successful EmployeesRHAC 104 12/5/2017 1
Financial Skills Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module: Understanding Your Financial RelationshipRHAC 104 12/12/2017 1
Medical and Health Services Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module: Healthy Eating through the HolidaysRHAC 104 12/14/2017 1

Garden Apartments Community Awareness Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module:  Adult Alcohol AwarenessRHAC 62 12/4/2017 1
Career Services Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module: 6 Traits of Successful EmployeesRHAC 62 12/5/2017 1
Financial Skills Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module: Understanding Your Financial RelationshipRHAC 62 12/12/2017 1
Medical and Health Services Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module: Healthy Eating through the HolidaysRHAC 62 12/14/2017 1
Direct Support Utility Referrals Catholic Family Services, Salvation Army, Neighborhood House, Across the Street Outreach1 12/27/2017 1

Gateway Northwest Personal development Book club self 3 12/14/2017 1
Medical and health Fitness during the holidays self 3 12/14/2017 1

High Plains Apartments Community Awareness Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module:  Adult Alcohol AwarenessRHAC 50 12/4/2017 1
Career Services Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module: 6 Traits of Successful EmployeesRHAC 50 12/5/2017 1
Financial Skills Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module: Understanding Your Financial RelationshipRHAC 50 12/12/2017 1
Medical and Health Services Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module: Healthy Eating through the HolidaysRHAC 50 12/14/2017 1
Direct Support Utility Referral Catholic Family Services, Salvation Army, Neighborhood House, Across the Street Outreach1 12/14/2017 1

Jose Antonio Escajeda Community Awareness Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module:  Adult Alcohol AwarenessRHAC 94 12/4/2017 1
Career Services Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module: 6 Traits of Successful EmployeesRHAC 94 12/5/2017 1
Financial Skills Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module: Understanding Your Financial RelationshipRHAC 94 12/12/2017 1
Medical and Health Services Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module: Healthy Eating through the HolidaysRHAC 94 12/14/2017 1

Los Ebanos Apartments Community Awareness Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module:  Adult Alcohol AwarenessRHAC 65 12/4/2017 1
Career Services Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module: 6 Traits of Successful EmployeesRHAC 65 12/5/2017 1
Financial Skills Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module: Understanding Your Financial RelationshipRHAC 65 12/12/2017 1
Medical and Health Services Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module: Healthy Eating through the HolidaysRHAC 65 12/14/2017 1

Marshall Meadows

Midland Palladium Nutrition Healthy breakfast on the go for residents Management Staff 2 12/4/2017 1
Financial Showing residents what the best options for small business loans are how to apply and where to go.  Management Staff 0 12/18/2017 1
Career Showing residents how to maintain professional courtesy in the work. Management Staff 0 12/21/2017 1
Wellness Giving residents ideas on how to meditate and also setting aside time for mental health.Management Staff 0 12/29/2017 1

Peoples El Shaddai Cleaning Class How to clean effectively and safely Staff 1 12/28/2017 1
Fire Safety Fire safety rules, cycle safety, gun safety and water safety Staff 3 12/28/2017 1

Peppertree Acres Community Awareness Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module:  Adult Alcohol AwarenessRHAC 148 12/4/2017 1
Career Services Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module: 6 Traits of Successful EmployeesRHAC 148 12/5/2017 1
Financial Skills Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module: Understanding Your Financial RelationshipRHAC 148 12/12/2017 1
Medical and Health Services Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module: Healthy Eating through the HolidaysRHAC 148 12/14/2017 1

Pine Club Valet Trash Service Trash Pick up 3 times a week Pine Club Staff 232 12/1/2017 1
Notary Service Provide Notary Lee Ann Rodgers 0 12/1/2017 1
Fax and Copy Provide fax and copy to all residents Pine Club 0 12/1/2017 1

Ridgewood Valet Trash Service Trash pickup twice a week Ridgewood Staff 232 12/1/2017 1
Notary Provide notary service to all Cathy Newvine 1 12/1/2017 1
Business Center Computer center for residents Ridgewood Staff 1 12/1/2017 1

Rita Blanca Library Library Rosalinda Davila 11 12/8/2017 1
Food Pantry Food Pantry Rosalinda Davila 22 12/15/2017 2

River Park Village Community Awareness Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module:  Adult Alcohol AwarenessRHAC 50 12/4/2017 1
Career Services Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module: 6 Traits of Successful EmployeesRHAC 50 12/5/2017 1
Financial Skills Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module: Understanding Your Financial RelationshipRHAC 50 12/12/2017 1
Medical and Health Services Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module: Healthy Eating through the HolidaysRHAC 50 12/14/2017 1

December Resident Services

No Services for December



Property Type of Service Description Provider
Number of 
Attendees

Date 
Provided

Points 
Assigned

December Resident Services

Saddlewood Club Valet Trash Service Trash pickup 3 times a week Saddlewood Staff 232 12/1/2017 1
Notary Provide notary service to all Erika Garcia 0 12/1/2017 1
Business - Fax/Copy Provide fax and copy services to all Saddlewood Staff 2 12/1/2017 1
Parenting Class Sibling Conflict Project Unity 7 12/5/2017 1
Crime Meeting Children Safety Bryan PD- Officer Dowling 9 12/7/2017 1

Saint James Manor Cleaning Class Cleaning Class/bingo style - Teaching cleaning techniques and safety with cleaning supplies, etc.Staff 1 12/28/2017 1
Fire Safety Fire safety rules, cycle safety, gun safety and water safety (with snacks/food)Staff 0 12/28/2017 1

Salem Village Community Awareness Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module:  Adult Alcohol AwarenessRHAC 105 12/4/2017 1
Career Services Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module: 6 Traits of Successful EmployeesRHAC 105 12/5/2017 1
Financial Skills Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module: Understanding Your Financial RelationshipRHAC 105 12/12/2017 1
Medical and Health Services Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module: Healthy Eating through the HolidaysRHAC 105 12/14/2017 1
Children Services Tutoring Mid-Coast Family Services 10 12/4/2017 1

Sierra Vista Community Awareness Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module:  Adult Alcohol AwarenessRHAC 106 12/4/2017 1
Career Services Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module: 6 Traits of Successful EmployeesRHAC 106 12/5/2017 1
Financial Skills Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module: Understanding Your Financial RelationshipRHAC 106 12/12/2017 1
Medical and Health Services Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module: Healthy Eating through the HolidaysRHAC 106 12/14/2017 1

Spring Terrace Community Awareness Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module:  Adult Alcohol AwarenessRHAC 50 12/4/2017 1
Career Services Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module: 6 Traits of Successful EmployeesRHAC 50 12/5/2017 1
Financial Skills Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module: Understanding Your Financial RelationshipRHAC 50 12/12/2017 1
Medical and Health Services Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module: Healthy Eating through the HolidaysRHAC 50 12/14/2017 1
Children Services Kids Club Mission Amarillo 6 12/5/2017 1

Tealwood Club Valet Trash Service Door to door pickup-twice a week Tealwood Apartments 180 12/1/2017 1
Business Center Computer Resource - Fax, Copy, Tealwood Apartments 180 12/1/2017 1
Notary Notary Tia Meeker/Tealwood Apartments 5 12/1/2017 1
Crime Free Meeting Quarterly Crime Free Meeting Ken Terry/Tealwood Apartments 17 12/22/2017 1

The Willows Food Bank Provided food bank services to ? tenants weekly on 12/7/17, 12/14/17, & 12/28/17MLF 74 12/7/2017 2
Direct Support Medical Caseworker called pharmacy regarding tenant's prescription payment, called ARA regarding tenant's wheelchair, picked up tenants Rx,rescheduled med. appointment, faxed papers to medical office, took personal items to tenant in the hospital, took Rx to tenant in hospital, copied medical records, visited tenant in hospital, gave medical reminder to tenant, located a new doctor for tenant, got info reg. doctors appointment MLF 17 12/1/2017 1
Medicaid & Medicare Caseworker assisted tenant in setting up a  my social security .gov" acct.MLF 6 12/4/2017 1
Personal Development Caseworker counseled tenants regarding various issues MLF 20 12/4/2017 1
Lending Library Tenant used library to meet with Counselor MLF 1 12/14/2017 1
Metro Access & STS Caseworker made Metro  reservation, printed bus route info. MLF 4 12/6/2017 1
MLF Transportation Caseworker drove tenants to HEB MLF 5 12/6/2017 1

White Rock Apartments Budgeting Money matters 365 Learn TV 233 12/31/2017 1
Environmental Education Green Living 365 Learn TV 236 12/31/2017 1
Educational/Tutoring Education scholastic tutoring 365 Learn TV 316 12/31/2017 1
Health Health and fitness 365 Learn TV 249 12/31/2017 1
Library Assistant Provide books, magazines and adult coloring to relieve stress.  You can bring in books or magazines or take a book or magazine to readWhite Rock Library Assistant 21 12/31/2017 1
Parenting Parenting 365 Learn TV 347 12/31/2017 1
Business Center Business center available to residents for computer use, faxing, etc.White Rock Business Center 24 12/31/2017 1
Veteran Service Animal SponsorshipWhite Rock will sponsor a service dog to a veteran in need White Rock 5 12/31/2017 1

Willow Green Valet/ services a door to door service we provide to all residents on Tuesday, Thursday willow green  staff 331 12/1/2017 1
Notary services a services we provide to all prospect and resident Gayle Harris 0 12/1/2017 1
Business center a services we provide to all prospect and resident willow green staff 5 12/1/2017 1
CRIME PREVENTION flyer door to door on internet  safety Willow green Staff 321 12/1/2017 1

Win-Lin Village Apartments Community Awareness Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module:  Adult Alcohol AwarenessRHAC 50 12/4/2017 1
Career Services Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module: 6 Traits of Successful EmployeesRHAC 50 12/5/2017 1
Financial Skills Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module: Understanding Your Financial RelationshipRHAC 50 12/12/2017 1
Medical and Health Services Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing Learning Module: Healthy Eating through the HolidaysRHAC 50 12/14/2017 1
Direct Support Utility Referral Salvation Army, Panhandle Community Services 1 12/13/2017 1

Woodglen Park Crime Watch Meeting Crime watch meeting for community DPD 6 12/31/2017 1
Business Center Provide computers, printers, and internet for community use. Including fax, copy, and notary accessWoodglen Park 35 12/31/2017 1
Notary Onsite notary for community use Woodglen Park 11 1
Valet Trash Bingo for the residents Woodglen Park 232 12/31/2017 1
After School Program Provide health meal and snack and tutoring for community Nutrition Transitions 45 12/31/2017 1

Woodside Village Job , Resume Internet job search Shannon Bradley 0 12/5/2017 1
Health and Nutrition Holliday Healthy tips Shannon Bradley 1 12/15/2017 1
Holliday Safety Beware of your surroundings Shannon Bradley 1 12/20/2017 1



Tab D 































































































TAB 1 



BOARD MEETING 
TEXAS STATE AFFORDABLE HOUSING CORPORATION 

Held at the offices of 
Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation 

2200 E. Martin Luther King Jr. Blvd. 
Austin, TX 78702 

December 14, 2017 at 10:30 a.m. 
 

Summary of Minutes 
 
Call to Order, Roll Call   
Certification of Quorum 
 
The Board Meeting of the Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation (the 
“Corporation”) was called to order by Bob Jones, Chair, at 10:34 a.m., on December 14, 
2017, at the offices of Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation, 2200 E. Martin Luther 
King Jr. Blvd, Austin, TX 78702.  Roll Call certified that a quorum was present. 
 
Members Present 
 
Bob Jones, Chair  
Bill Dietz, Vice Chair 
Gerry Evenwel, Member 
Jerry Romero, Member 
 
Members Absent 
 
Alex Meade, Member 
 
Staff Present 
 
Betsy Aldrich, Senior Accounting Manager 
Katie Claflin, Director, Communications & Development  
Joniel Crim, Director of Homeownership Programs 
David Danenfelzer, Senior Director of Development Finance 
Nick Lawrence, Controller 
David Long, President 
James Matias, Senior Manager of Asset Oversight & Compliance 
Laura Ross, Corporate Secretary/Senior Manager of Digital Content and Publications 
Melinda Smith, Chief Financial Officer 
Janie Taylor, Executive Vice President 
Michael Wilt, Manager of External Relations 
 
Guests 
 
Veronica Day, Maxwell Locke & Ritter 
Dena Jansen, Maxwell Locke & Ritter 
Karen Kennard, Greenberg Traurig, LLP 
Diana McIver, DMA Companies 
Claire Merritt, Hilltop Securities 
Tim Nelson, Hilltop Securities 
Melissa Ohren, Accessible Housing Austin (AHA!) 



  
 

 
 

2

Jeff Spicer, Dominium 
Mitch Weynand, Accessible Housing Austin (AHA!) 
 
Public Comment 
 
No Public Comment was given. 
 
Audit Committee Report 
 
Vice Chairman Bill Dietz presented the Audit Committee report. 
 
Mr. Dietz stated that the meeting started at 9:00 A.M. and the full Audit Report for the fiscal 
year 2017 was presented and reviewed with the Committee. The Audit Report was approved for 
presentation to the full board.  
 
President’s Report 
 
Mr. Long began by going through the reports contained in the board packet. He noted that this 
month the packet included the quarterly reports for compliance and resident services, as well as 
the fundraising report. Mr. Long noted there were no financial exceptions under the financial 
reports under Tab E.  
 
Mr. Long thanked Mr. Dietz and Mr. Evenwel for their leadership during the Audit Committee 
meeting earlier that morning. During that meeting the Audit Committee approved the 
Corporation’s annual independent fiscal audit to be presented to the full Board under Tab Item 3. 
 
Under Tab 4 the Board would consider a loan requested by an organization in Austin that would 
support the Briarcliff Apartment Complex. The Loan Committee, which included Mr. Romero 
who served as the board’s representative on the Committee, had met and approved the loan the 
previous month.  
 
Mr. Long provided an overview of the Single Family homeownership programs and how busy 
staff had been as a result of the continued increase in volume. Staff was very pleased with the 
increased demand for the program but the increased demand also required additional work by the 
accounting department.  
 
Mr. Long informed the board that the Corporation received a $3,200 grant from Bank of 
America to support the June 2018 housing connection training. We also received $4,600 in 
donations from 25 realtors and TSAHC-approved loan officers as part of the Giving Tuesday 
online donation campaign. Those donations would go to support the 2018 Housing Connection 
Training.  
 
In November Mr. Dietz attended a breakfast where Mr. Long was the keynote speaker. Ms. 
Claflin and Ms. Taylor also attended the breakfast hosted by NeighborWorks Waco. Mr. Long 
thanked Mr. Dietz for his attendance and NeighborWorks for inviting him to speak. 
 



  
 

 
 

3

In late October Mr. Danenfelzer, Ms. Taylor, Mr. Matias and Mr. Long attended the Texas 
Association of Local Housing Finance Agencies (TALHFA) Conference in Fort Worth. Mr. 
Long mentioned how appreciative he was to have the chance to attend with his colleagues.  
 
Mr. Long recognized Mr. Wilt who serves as the Corporation’s representative to the Texas 
Medical Services Innovation Accelerator program. TSAHC hosted the program meeting last 
month. Mr. Long reminded the board that the Corporation was asked by the Texas Health and 
Human Services Commission to be their housing partner for this program. This partnership was 
in support of the application submitted by the Health and Human Services organization to the 
Center of Medicaid Services to participate in the program. Texas was one of the eight states that 
were selected to be a partner in this program at a federal level.  
 
Mr. Long noted the conferences that were attended by staff; in November, Ms. Davila and Ms. 
Aldrich attended the Emphasys conference where training on the TSAHC single-family software 
compliance package was provided.  
 
Ms. Stubbs and Ms. Keene were currently attending a week-long NeighborWorks Institute 
training being held in Washington, D.C.  Ms. Claflin, Ms. Ellinor, and Ms. Davila would be 
attending a governors training the following week at the Governor’s Center for Management 
development which was part of the UT Austin, LBJ School of Public Affairs.  
 
Mr. Long introduced the professionals in the audience: Ms. Karen Kennard, with Greenberg 
Traurig as General Counsel; and. Tim Nelson, and Claire Merritt with Hilltop Securities, 
TSAHC’s financial advisors.  
 
Lastly, Mr. Long provided the board members with a list of upcoming Board meetings for 2018. 
Mr. Long wanted the Board to have these dates so they could put them on their calendars and 
better coordinate their schedules.  
 
The next meeting was scheduled for Thursday the 18th of January 2018. Mr. Long reminded 
everyone to place that date on their calendars.  
 
Tab 1 Presentation, Discussion and Possible Approval of Minutes of the Board 

Meeting held on October 19, 2017. 
 
Mr. Evenwel made a motion to approve the minutes of the Board Meeting held on October 19, 
2017. Mr. Dietz seconded the motion. Mr. Jones asked for public comments and none was given. 
A vote was taken and the motion passed unanimously.    
 
 
Tab 2 Presentation, Discussion and Possible Approval of the Audit Committee 

Guidelines. 
 
Ms. Smith provided the Board with a new copy of the Audit Committee guidelines. She then 
noted the two changes that had been made on page 3. The first change was under Item 2: 
Independent Auditors where the word “with” was added to the sentence. The second change 
could be found under Item 3. Ms. Smith explained that Circular A133 was now called the 
Uniform Guidance. Ms. Day with Maxwell, Locke and Ritter had previously reviewed the 



  
 

 
 

4

guidelines and suggested the changes. Mr. Dietz pointed out that he and Mr. Evenwel had both 
reviewed and approved the guidelines during the audit committee meeting.  
 
Mr. Romero made a motion to approve the audit committee guidelines as presented.  Mr. 
Evenwel seconded the motion. Mr. Jones asked for public comments and none were given. A 
vote was taken and the motion passed unanimously.  
 
Tab 3 Presentation, Discussion and Possible Approval of the Annual Independent 

Financial Audit for the Fiscal Year Ending August 31, 2017. 
 
Ms. Jansen with Maxwell, Locke, and Ritter presented the results of the audit to the board. She 
noted that as of August 31, 2017, they were issuing an unmodified opinion of the financial 
statements. There were no new accounting pronouncements, accounting policies, or changes in 
existing policies for the year or the next to come. She also noted that the audit had been 
conducted in accordance with the Government Auditing Standards and there did not appear to be 
any adjustments that needed to be made to the financial statements.  
 
Ms. Jansen stated that internal controls were also reviewed, and the auditors found no 
deficiencies, material weaknesses in internal control or non-compliance with performing specific 
procedures on the Public Funds Investment Act or the HUD reporting. 
 
Ms. Jansen mentioned to the board that she would be leaving Maxwell Locke & Ritter at the end 
of January and Mr. Rommell would be taking over as partner on the engagement. 
 
Mr. Jones made a motion to approve the Annual Independent Financial Audit for the Fiscal Year 
Ending August 31, 2017. Mr. Romero seconded the motion. Mr. Jones asked the public for 
comments and none were given. A vote was taken and the motion passed unanimously. 
  
Tab 4 Presentation, Discussion and Possible Approval of a Loan to Accessible 

Housing Austin in the Amount of $695,000 for the AHA! at Briarcliff 
Apartment Project. 

 
Mr. Danenfelzer was joined by Ms. Ohren, Executive Director of AHA, to discuss the Braircliff 
Apartment Project.  The project proposed 27 new accessible and affordable apartment homes and 
was supported by project- based rental assistance, as well as Section 811.  
 
The project had a total budget of about $5.2 million, and was supported by financing from the 
City of Austin. The project was currently awaiting an award of $1.5 million from Texas 
Department of Housing Community Affairs. Mr. Danenfelzer asked if there were any questions 
and if so Mr. Ohren would answer them. Mr. Romero asked if staff approval was predicated on 
approval of TDHCA funds. Ms. Ohren answered that financing would need to be in place in 
order to close on the loan.  
 
Mr. Romero made a motion to approve the loan to Accessible Housing Austin in the amount of 
$695,000 for the AHA! at Briarcliff Apartment Project. Mr. Evenwel seconded the motion. Mr. 
Jones asked for public comment and none was given. A vote was taken and the motion passed 
unanimously. 
 



  
 

 
 

5

Tab 5 Presentation, Discussion and Possible Approval of a Resolution Regarding 
the Submission of one or more Applications for Allocation of Private Activity 
Bonds, Notices of Intention to Issue Bonds and State Bond Applications to 
the Texas Bond Review Board and Declaration of Expectation to Reimburse 
Expenditures with Proceeds of Future Debt for the Beckley Townhomes (fka 
Rosemont at Timber Creek). 

 
Mr. Danenfelzer noted that TSAHC had previous experience working in this particular location. 
In 2010 home prices ranged from $80,000 to $90,000 and as of 2015, homes were selling for 
$120,000 to $150,000. It was important to preserve and maintain the affordability long term. 
 
Dominium was a national organization with over 25,000 apartment units nationwide. The 
proposed $15 million bond transaction structure with FHA had been used in prior transactions 
involving the Corporation. While TSAHC had not worked in the past on bond projects with 
Dominium, staff had worked with Mr. Spicer multiple times.  
 
Mr. Spicer spoke of how valuable it was to prevent 100 units from going to market pricing in the 
City of Dallas. He reminded the board of how much easier it was to preserve housing rather than 
create new affordable housing. Unfortunately the City of Dallas did not have a program currently 
to finance them locally so Mr. Spicer was asked to contact the state organizations.  
 
Mr. Jones and Mr. Spicer discussed the name change. He noted that several properties in the area 
contained the words Rosemont or Primrose in their name. Dominium wanted to stay away from 
the trademark of Rosemont and Primrose. 
 
Mr. Romero mentioned the renovation cost per unit and that it seemed pretty low. He asked if the 
property was in pretty good shape.  Mr. Spicer replied that it was in good shape.  
 
Mr. Romero asked for a breakdown of costs. Mr. Danenfelzer stated that they had a breakdown, 
but it would likely change closer to financing. Mr. Danenfelzer asked the board for authority to 
move forward to do an in depth investigation of the project. Beckley Townhomes would hold a 
public hearing for TEFRA purposes, and then carry out and develop bond documents. Staff 
would then bring the transaction back to the Board after all the documents were in place for final 
approval before going to the State’s Bond Review Board (BRB).  
 
Mr. Romero made a motion to approve the resolution regarding the submission of one or more 
applications for allocation of private activity bonds, notices of intention to issue bonds and state 
bond applications to the Texas Bond Review Board and declaration of expectation to reimburse 
expenditures with proceeds of future debt for the Beckley Townhomes (aka Rosemont at Timber 
Creek). Mr. Dietz seconded the motion. Mr. Jones asked for public comment and none was 
given. A vote was taken on the motion and it passed unanimously. 
 
Tab 6 Presentation, Discussion and Possible Approval of a resolution authorizing 

the Corporation to take preliminary action to carry out the financing of The 
Park at Douglass Crossing Apartments (the “Project”), including creating 
limited liability companies and limited partnerships relating to the project, 
filing applications to obtain debt financing and tax credits for the project; 



  
 

 
 

6

negotiating a term sheet; and resolving other matters in connection 
therewith. 

 
Mr. Danenfelzer explained that before the Board was a $25,000 loan request. The loan would be 
used for pre-development costs of the Park at Douglass Crossing Apartments in Plano, which 
was purchased in 2012. TSAHC would be partnering with Diana McIver Associates (DMA) for 
this project consisting of 66 units of senior housing. It would require an application for 9 percent 
Housing Tax Credits. Mr. Danenfelzer noted that it was a highly competitive process, but 
hopefully it would turn into a great investment for affordable housing. The property had 
appraised at $1 million 3 years prior. 
 
Ms. McIver spoke about a concept drawing for the development which included surface parking. 
With it being a small lot there would be a podium with parking underneath. 
 
Mr. Danenfelzer added that one reason TSAHC had purchased the property was because it was 
so close to transportation which would be beneficial to seniors. 
 
Mr. Romero made motion to approve the Park at Douglass Crossing Apartments, Mr. Jones 
moved and seconded and then asked for public comments and none were given. A vote was 
taken and the motion passed unanimously. 
 
Tab 7 Presentation, Discussion and Possible Approval of Amended Policy and 

Guidelines for the Texas Housing Impact Fund. 
 
Mr. Danenfelzer reminded the Board that in October they authorized staff to publish the policies 
for public comment. Public comment had been received during the comment period and 
reviewed. As a result, staff had made additional changes outside of the ones originally proposed. 
Staff received public comment under Section 7 (c)(2)suggesting that TSAHC require that 
homebuyer training certificates be provided when looking at homebuyers who are eligible to 
purchase properties financed by the program. Also, after talking to the loan committee members, 
language under Section 8 was amended to clarify some of the types of financial statements 
TSAHC would accept, including CPA reviews and auditing documents, along with the time 
frame those documents would be reviewed.  
 
Mr. Romero asked if TSAHC had a time frame for how far back those financial statements must 
go. Mr. Danenfelzer replied TSAHC was requiring the past two years of financial statements, but 
additional conditions were added regarding the year-to-date financial statements, and ensuring 
that staff received them within a certain time frame.  
 
Mr. Jones asked about the aggregate exposure limit and how the number of $3 million was 
calculated. Mr. Danenfelzer replied that staff considered the total loans given to an individual 
organization. TSAHC didn’t want any individual entity or group having more than $3 million in 
outstanding loans.  
 
Mr. Evenwel moved for approval of the amended Policy and Guidelines for the Texas Housing 
Impact Fund; Mr. Romero seconded the motion. Mr. Jones asked for public comments and there 
were none. A vote was taken and passed unanimously.  
  



  
 

 
 

7

Tab 8 Presentation, Discussion and Possible Approval of the Guidelines, Scoring 
Criteria and Targeted Housing Needs for the Allocation of Qualified 
Residential Rental Project Tax Exempt Bond Funds under the Multifamily 
Housing Private Activity Bond Program Request for Proposals and the 
501(c)(3) Bond Program Policies for Calendar Year 2018. 

 
Mr. Danenfelzer noted for the Board that the policies and Request for Proposals had been out 
since October for public comments.  TSAHC received no comments, but staff made some 
wording changes that general counsel recommended. Additionally, counsel felt these changes did 
not require further public comment.  
 
Mr. Jones made a motion to approve the Guidelines, Scoring Criteria and Targeted Housing 
Needs for the allocation of Qualified Residential Rental Project Tax Exempt Bond Funds under 
the Multifamily Housing Private Activity Bond Program Request for Proposals and the 501(c)(3) 
Bond Program Policies for calendar year 2018. Mr. Evenwel second. Mr. Jones asked for public 
comments and none were given. A vote was taken and the motion passed unanimously.  
 
Tab 9 Presentation, Discussion and Possible Approval of the Guidelines for 

TSAHC’s Participation in Development Partnerships as they relate to the 
Corporation’s participation as general partner or managing member in 
affordable multifamily development ownership entities that meet or exceed 
the requirements of the Corporation’s Multifamily Tax-Exempt Bond 
Programs. 

  
Mr. Danenfelzer informed the Board that general counsel had made several changes to the 
Development Partnership policies after the board approved them for public comment. One of the 
most important changes was under section 1A, eligible developments. Staff clarified the rules to 
apply the applications for new developments and how it’s rewarded. The application language 
was amended regarding the ownership structure. There was a significant amount of wording 
changes made at the request of legal counsel.  The key change to the policies this year was the 
difference from the federal requirements for accessibility and how many physical units were 
built for persons with disabilities can use it.  
 
Mr. Danenfelzer noted the most important change was under Section 5.4 which required  
multifamily properties set aside at least 5 percent of their units for persons with mobility 
impairments, and a total of 2 percent of units  for persons with hearing or visual impairments. 
Any individual could rent an accessible unit, whether they have a disability or not. Tax credit 
developments were only required to reserve those five units in the initial lease up. The revised 
policies now state that 5 units must be reserved and only rented to persons with disabilities. Mr. 
Danenfelzer further explained that it would be the greater of 5% or 5 that must be reserved; as an 
example, if you have 200 total units then 10 units would be reserved. The only time the 5 would 
be used is when there were less than 100 units. If there were 90 units, then 5 would be reserved.  
 
Mr. Jones made a motion to approve the Guidelines for TSAHC’s Participation in Development 
Partnerships as they relate to the Corporation’s participation as general partner or managing 
member in affordable multifamily development ownership entities that meet or exceed the 
requirements of the Corporation’s Multifamily Tax-Exempt Bond Programs. Mr. Romero 



  
 

 
 

8

seconded the motion. Mr. Jones asked for public comments and none were given. A vote was 
taken and the motion passed unanimously. 
 
Tab 10 Presentation, Discussion and Possible Approval of the Proposed Rules for the 

Homes for Texas Heroes Home Loan Program. 
 
Ms. Crim pointed out that in October the Board approved the draft version of the proposed rules 
for the Homes for Texas Heroes Home Loan Program for public comment. Ms. Crim explained 
that the Corporation had received comments from the public and reviewed them. After 
consultation with general counsel, staff was proposing changes to the rules that were in line with 
the goals of the program. The first change was to clarify the definition for “reside in Texas”. The 
candidate must have the intent to live in Texas. Documentation such as a work contract would 
show they were moving to Texas. The second change was to clarify that active duty military 
were considered veterans. At this time Mr. Romero asked about the spouses of veterans. Ms. 
Crim stated that the definition of veteran was found under government code Section 161.011. 
 
Ms. Kennard, TSAHC general counsel, stated that the statute was the Natural Resources Code 
which was interpreted by the Veteran Land Board out of the General Land Office, and they did 
include spouses in the definition.  Discussion continued on what it meant to reside in Texas.  
 
Mr. Jones made a motion to approve the proposed rules for the Homes for Texas Heroes Home 
Loan Program. Mr. Dietz seconded the motion. Mr. Jones asked for public comments which 
there were none. A vote was taken and it passed unanimously.  
 
Tab 11 Presentation, Discussion and Possible Approval for Publication and Public 

Comment of the Draft of the Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation 
2018 Annual Action Plan. 

 
Mr. Wilt explained to the Board how this plan was prepared in accordance with Texas 
Government Code Section 2306.566, which required TSAHC to develop a plan annually to 
address the state’s housing needs. According to Section 2306.0721 (g) the Corporation’s Annual 
Action Plan must be included each year in the state Low Income Housing Plan which is prepared 
by the Texas Department of Housing and Community Affairs (TDHCA).  
 
Mr. Wilt asked for approval for the draft plan to be published for public comment. The public 
comment period would begin Friday, December 15th and would conclude on Friday, January 19, 
2018, it also included a public hearing that TSAHC would hold in conjunction with TDHCA on 
January 16th. Mr. Wilt explained that after that the staff would bring the plan back to the Board 
in February with any input provided during the public comment period.  
 
Mr. Wilt noted that the draft plan only included program activity statistics through October 31, 
2017. Staff would update the numbers for each of the program areas through December, 31st.  
 
Mr. Jones asked about the public hearing and Mr. Wilt explained that it would be held at the 
Stephen F. Austin Building. TDHCA would host the hearing, because they would be holding a 
hearing on the State Low Income Housing Plan (SLIHP) and the Corporation’s Annual Action 
Plan was a component of the SLIHP.  
 



  
 

 
 

9

Mr. Dietz asked if there was anything materially different from last year in the Plan, and Mr. 
Wilt responded that TSAHC has expanded the eligibility for their home ownership program 
which was reflected, along with how they were able to serve more borrowers. There were a 
couple of new programs added this year, including the innovation accelerator program with the 
Center for Medicaid Services. TSAHC would also hold a rural housing preservation academy in 
January. Finally, TSAHC created Housing Connection, which is an expansion of our counselor 
connection which served non-profits that provided services in addition to housing counseling. 
 
Mr. Romero made a motion to approve for publication and public comment of the draft of the 
Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation 2018 Annual Action Plan. Mr. Evenwel seconded, 
Mr. Jones asked for public comment; there were none. A vote was taken and it passed 
unanimously.  
 
Open Meeting 
 
Mr. Long noted that there were no items to discuss that required the Board going into closed 
session.  
 
Mr. Jones thanked the staff for all they had done during the audit that year.  Mr. Jones pointed 
out his appreciation for the Board members. He ended with thanking the court reported for her 
faithful transcriptions.   
 
Adjournment 
 
Mr. Jones adjourned the meeting at 11:52 a.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted by________________________________________________ 
Laura Ross, Corporate Secretary 
 
 
 
 



TAB 2 



 

1 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

TEXAS STATE AFFORDABLE HOUSING CORPORATION 
2018 ANNUAL ACTION PLAN 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

2 
 

TEXAS STATE AFFORDABLE HOUSING CORPORATION 
 

2018 ANNUAL ACTION PLAN 
 
 

INTRODUCTION 
 

This plan is prepared in accordance with Texas Government Code, Section 2306.566, 
which requires the Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation (“Corporation”) to 
develop a plan to address the state’s housing needs. Texas Government Code, Section 
2306.0721(g) requires the Corporation’s Annual Action Plan to be included in the State 
Low Income Housing Plan (“SLIHP”) prepared by the Texas Department of Housing and 
Community Affairs (“TDHCA”). 

 
CORPORATION OVERVIEW 

 
The Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation, created in 1994 at the direction of the 
Texas State Legislature, is a self-sustaining nonprofit entity whose mission is to serve the 
housing needs of moderate to extremely low-income Texans and other underserved 
populations who cannot access comparable housing options through conventional 
financial channels. The Corporation’s enabling legislation can be found in Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 2306, Subchapter Y, Sections 2306.551 et seq. 
 
The Corporation’s office is located in Austin, Texas. A five-member volunteer Board of 
Directors, appointed by the Governor of Texas, oversees the policies and business of the 
Corporation. None of the Corporation’s programs or operations are funded through the 
State’s budget appropriations process. 
 
The Corporation is statutorily authorized to issue mortgage revenue bonds and other tax 
exempt bonds to finance the purchase and creation of affordable housing. The 
Corporation also has the authority to use loans from banks, private mortgage companies, 
nonprofit organizations and other financial institutions to assist low, very low, and 
extremely low income Texans. Over the course of its history, the Corporation has utilized 
more than $2.3 billion in single family bonding authority and approximately $747 million 
in multifamily private activity bonds.1 Bond issuances are used to finance the creation 
and preservation of affordable multifamily housing and the following home buyer 
programs: 

 
§ Homes for Texas Heroes Home Loan Program 

 
§ Home Sweet Texas Home Loan Program 

 
§ Mortgage Credit Certificate Program 

                                                           
1 2017 Corporation bond activity includes the issuance of $928,015,269 in mortgage revenue bonds for the Mortgage Credit 
Certificate program and the issuance of $22,560,000 in Multifamily Private Activity Bonds.  



 

3 
 

Using its mission and statutory purpose and powers as guidance, the Corporation has 
developed the following additional programs, services and initiatives to help meet the need 
for affordable housing in Texas: 

 
§ Home Buyer and Financial Education  

 
§ Texas Housing Impact Fund 

 
§ Affordable Communities of Texas 

 
§ Asset Oversight and Compliance 

 
§ Single Family Rental Program 

 
§ Multifamily Rental Program 

 
§ Texas Foundations Fund and Other Initiatives 

 
CORPORATION OBJECTIVE 

 
The programs and services the Corporation administers have evolved and grown over the 
years as it works to serve the housing needs of Texans who need affordable housing and 
underserved populations, such as people with disabilities and people living in rural areas of 
the state where access to services and programs is limited. In 2018, the Corporation’s 
objective is to continue to implement innovative approaches to fulfill its mission while 
expanding the success of its current programs.   
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

4 
 

 
PROGRAM DESCRIPTIONS AND IMPLEMENTATION PLANS 

 
HOMEOWNERSHIP PROGRAMS 
 
Over the last decade research has consistently shown that homeownership has a positive 
impact on the socioeconomic status of a household and their community. The financial benefits 
range from yearly tax benefits to the creation of wealth over time earned through monthly 
mortgage payments.2 
 
In addition to financial benefits, there are social benefits to homeownership.  Research 
conducted by the National Association of REALTORS® showed that stable housing created by 
homeownership led to improved children’s health and happiness, reduced crime rate, 
increased civic engagement, and better educational outcomes for children of homeowners.3 
 
The Corporation currently administers the Homes for Texas Heroes and Home Sweet Texas 
Home Loan Programs, which provide 30-year fixed-rate mortgage loans, tax credits and down 
payment assistance to low and moderate-income families and individuals. The down payment 
assistance is provided in the form of a grant that does not require repayment when the home is 
sold or the mortgage loan is refinanced. 
 
These programs are available statewide on a first-come, first-served basis to home buyers who 
wish to purchase a newly constructed or existing home. Home buyers must meet income and 
purchase price limits set by federal guidelines, while demonstrating creditworthiness and 
meeting standard mortgage underwriting requirements. Home buyers must also occupy the 
purchased home as their primary residence. The programs are accessible to eligible borrowers 
by directly contacting a participating mortgage lender. 
 
Traditionally, the Corporation has funded these programs through the tax-exempt bond market 
by issuing mortgage revenue bonds available under its statutory authority. All of the 
Corporation’s bond issuances are subject to oversight by the Texas Bond Review Board. More 
recently the Corporation has funded these programs by pooling loans on a regular basis and 
selling the mortgage-backed securities.  
 
The Homes for Texas Heroes Home Loan Program, established by the Legislature in 2003, is 
allocated 10 percent of the State's private activity bond cap for the purpose of making 
mortgage loans to: 
 
§ Public School Classroom Teachers 
§ Public School Teacher’s Aides 
§ Public School Librarians 

                                                           
2 Source: Michael Corbett, “Freshen Up on the 7 Financial Benefits of Homeownership,” trulia.com, April 23, 2015  
3 Source: “4 Social Benefits of Homeownership,” REALTOR®Mag, October 25, 2017  



 

5 
 

§ Public School Nurses 
§ Public School Counselors 
§ Faculty Members of an Allied Health or Professional Nursing Program 
§ Paid Firefighters 
§ Emergency Medical Services Personnel 
§ Peace Officers 
§ Corrections Officers 
§ Juvenile Corrections Officers 
§ County Jailers 
§ Veterans 
§ Public Security Officers 

 
In 2006, the Corporation created the Home Sweet Texas Home Loan Program to serve home 
buyers not eligible for the Homes for Texas Heroes Home Loan Program. The Home Sweet 
Texas Home Loan Program is not profession-specific. Both the Homes for Texas Heroes and 
Home Sweet Texas Home Loan Programs are available statewide to those with incomes at or 
below 115 percent of the area median family income.  
 
Prior to April 1, 2017, the Home Sweet Texas Home Loan Program was available to households 
with incomes at or below 80 percent of the area median income. On April 1, 2017, the 
Corporation expanded income eligibility to 115 percent of the area median income to address 
the housing needs of moderate income Texans who increasingly need assistance due to surging 
home prices statewide.4

                                                           
4 Source: Steve Brown, “Texas home prices have skyrocketed since 2006; how D-FW compares,” www.dallasnews.com, November 13, 
2017  

http://www.dallasnews.com


 

6 
 

Mortgage Credit Certificate Program 
 
In 2008, the Corporation established the Mortgage Credit Certificate (MCC) Program as another 
way to assist first-time home buyers. The MCC Program is made possible under IRS rules that 
allow the conversion of single family mortgage revenue bonds into Mortgage Credit 
Certificates. The Corporation’s MCC Program serves the same populations eligible for the 
Homes for Texas Heroes and Home Sweet Texas Home Loan Programs; however, the program is 
only available to first-time homebuyers (defined as those who have not owned a home in three 
years.) 
 
Under the MCC Program, the home buyer can take a portion of the annual interest paid on the 
mortgage loan as a special tax credit, up to $2,000 each year that they occupy the home as 
their principal residence. An MCC has the potential of saving the home buyer thousands of 
dollars over the life of the loan. And although the MCC Program is not a home loan program, 
the Corporation requires the home buyer to obtain a fixed-rate mortgage loan.  Home buyers 
can also combine the MCC Program with the mortgage loan and down payment assistance 
provided under the Homes for Texas Heroes and Home Sweet Texas Home Loan Programs. 
2017 Homeownership Programs Expansion 
 
Since its inception the Corporation has continued to stay abreast of any changes or 
developments in the mortgage industry. In 2017, the Corporation made three notable changes 
to respond to industry trends and meet consumers’ needs. 
 
The first was expanding the income eligibility for the Home Sweet Texas Home Loan program as 
noted above. As of October 31, 2017, the U.S. homeownership rate stood at 63.9% which is 
nearly identical to the third quarter rate of 2016.5 This is well below the all-time high of 69.2% 
in 2004. At 61.5% as of June 2017, the Texas homeownership rate is even lower than the U.S. 
homeownership rate.6 Rising home prices and an overall low inventory of available starter 
homes to meet demand are the main contributors to the lagging homeownership rate in both 
Texas and the United States as a whole.7   
 
But even for those who are ready to buy a home, one of the major barriers is that many 
prospective buyers simply cannot accumulate sufficient funds for a down payment.8 This 
problem has worsened in recent years as increasing rent prices, particularly in metro areas, 
continue to make saving for a down payment that much more difficult.9  Expanding the income 
eligibility requirements for the Home Sweet Texas Home Loan Program allowed the 
Corporation to serve more Texans who want to buy a house but aren’t able to save enough for 
a down payment often due to higher home costs and increased rents that restrict savings.   
 
                                                           
5 Source: https://www.census.gov/housing/hvs/files/currenthvspress.pdf, October 31, 2017 
6 Source: https://fred.stlouisfed.org/series/TXHOWN, accessed November 9, 2017  
7 Source: James P. Gaines et al, “Texas Housing Insight,” Texas Real Estate Center, November 2, 2017  
8 Source: Chrystal Caruthers, “Free Money: $12,000 for Down Payment, Why Aren’t You Applying?,” realtor.com, February 4, 2015 
9 Source: Jeff Andrews, “What rising home prices mean for your down payment,” www.curbed.com, November 9, 2017 

https://www.census.gov/housing/hvs/files/currenthvspress.pdf
https://fred.stlouisfed.org/series/TXHOWN
http://www.curbed.com


 

7 
 

The second change was selecting a new Master Servicer to service the Corporation’s loans. 
With the new servicer came enhancements to the Corporation’s homeownership programs that 
allow the Corporation to provide assistance to more Texans.  
 
The Corporation implemented a third change specifically to honor those professionals eligible 
for the Corporation’s Homes for Texas Heroes Home Loan Program. Home buyers receiving a 
mortgage loan and down payment assistance grant under the Homes for Texas Heroes Program 
are now eligible to receive an MCC for free (a $500 savings).  This program change encourages 
more Texas Heroes who are first-time home buyers to take advantage of the MCC Program and 
the tax benefits the program provides. 
 
In 2017, the Corporation’s home buyer programs helped 5,758 families purchase a home. This 
is more than triple the 1,791 families the Corporation assisted last year. To date, the 
Corporation has served more than 19,250 households under our home loan, down payment 
and MCC programs. 
 
 
Home Buyer Education Requirement 
 
Studies show that home buyer education empowers families and individuals with the 
knowledge they need to expand their housing searches, avoid risky home purchases or 
questionable mortgages, lower their housing costs, improve their credit scores, save more 
money, and avoid or resolve delinquent mortgage payments.10   
 
There is also evidence that homeowners who take a pre-purchase home buyer education 
course have significantly lower rates of mortgage payment delinquencies. Specifically, a study 
conducted by Neil Mayer and Associates in collaboration with Experian found that clients 
receiving home buyer education prior to purchasing a home are one-third less likely to become 
90 or more days delinquent over the two years after receiving their loan as compared to  
borrowers who do not receive that pre-purchase education or counseling.11  
 
To help ensure families and individuals are well prepared for the responsibilities of owning a 
home, every home buyer who utilizes one of the Corporation’s homeownership programs must 
complete an approved home buyer education course prior to closing on their home. The 
Corporation requires that home buyers take a course offered by a provider listed on our Texas 
Financial Toolbox www.texasfinancialtoolbox.com web site.12 The providers listed on the 
Toolbox are generally nonprofit organizations or government entities who are either HUD-
approved or certified to provide home buyer education.  
 
2018 Implementation Plan 
                                                           
10 Source: Evidence Matters, “The Evidence on Homeownership Education and Counseling,” Spring 2016 
11 Source: Neil S. Mayer and Kenneth Temkin, “Pre-Purchase Counseling Impacts on Mortgage Performance: Empirical Analysis of 
NeighborWorks America’s Experience,” Neil Mayer and Associates on behalf of NeighborWorks America, March 2013. 
12 Texas Financial Toolbox, http://www.texasfinancialtoolbox.com/home-buyer-education  

http://www.texasfinancialtoolbox.com
http://www.texasfinancialtoolbox.com/home-buyer-education


 

8 
 

 
The Corporation will look to expand the reach of our homeownership programs by continuing 
to build upon relationships with current lenders and recruiting additional lenders to participate 
in our homeownership programs. In 2017, the Corporation was very successful in recruiting 
new lenders primarily because of the changes it made to the homeownership programs. In 
2018, the Corporation will build upon this success and continue to recruit more lenders.  
 
The Corporation will also make a stronger push in marketing to REALTORS®. In the past two 
years, the Corporation has rolled out new marketing initiatives aimed towards these 
professionals and will continue to explore and implement new strategies in 2018.  
 
Additionally, the Corporation will continue to market programs directly to home buyers. There 
are hundreds of down payment programs that provide on average $11,565 per buyer in 
assistance.13 However, many home buyers aren’t taking advantage of the programs because 
information about them is not sought out by home buyers or communicated to them.14  
Many home buyers discover our programs directly from the Corporation’s web site. In 2018, 
the Corporation will refresh its web site to make it even more user-friendly, allowing potential 
home buyers to easily access and understand information.  
 
HOME BUYER EDUCATION AND FINANCIAL EDUCATION 
 
In 2012, the Corporation created the Texas Financial Toolbox (www.texasfinancialtoolbox.com). 
The Texas Financial Toolbox gives consumers an easy way to find nonprofit organizations or 
government entities that can help them achieve their financial and homeownership goals 
through home buyer education, credit counseling or financial education.  
 
Whether consumers want to learn how to better manage their money, find out if they’re ready 
for homeownership, understand the home buying process and the programs that are available 
to help them buy a home, or learn how to avoid foreclosure, the Texas Financial Toolbox is a 
great place to start. Information about home buyer programs, home buyer education classes, 
financial education, and foreclosure prevention is available, all searchable by city. This is a 
unique tool the Corporation believes is providing essential information to Texas consumers. 
 
In 2017, the Corporation expanded the Toolbox resource by creating a Down Payment 
Assistance Calculator (http://www.texasfinancialtoolbox.com/mortgage-calculator) to help 
potential home buyers determine their monthly payment using the Corporation’s loan and 
down payment assistance options. This resource also includes a step by step guide to help 
families and individuals gain a better understanding of the home buying process.  
 
The Down Payment Assistance Calculator replaced an earlier mortgage calculator created in 

                                                           
13 Source: Chrystal Caruthers, “Free Money: $12,000 for Down Payment, Why Aren’t You Applying?,” realtor.com, February 4, 2015 
14 Source: Laurie Goodman, et. al. “Barriers to Accessing Homeownership: Down Payment, Credit, and Affordability,” Urban Institute, 
November, 2017  

http://www.texasfinancialtoolbox.com)
http://www.texasfinancialtoolbox.com/mortgage-calculator


 

9 
 

2010 to provide home buyers with an estimated interest rate based on their credit score. 
 
Texas Statewide Homebuyer Education Program 
 
The Texas Statewide Homebuyer Education Program (TSHEP) provides continuing education to 
housing counselors who provide home buyer education to consumers, most of them low-
income. The Texas Department of Community Affairs (TDHCA is statutorily responsible for 
implementing TSHEP. However, from 2012-2017, the Corporation, through a formal agreement 
with TDHCA, administered and implemented TSHEP. The Corporation, in consultation with 
housing counselors and TDHCA, selected the training courses each year and managed the 
logistics surrounding the training sessions. In addition, as a nonprofit organization, the 
Corporation successfully raised significant funds from financial institutions to expand the 
program.   
 
In 2017, housing counselors across the state had the opportunity to attend two separate 
trainings that furthered their skills and certified many of the participants as home buyer 
education providers. The Corporation contracted with NeighborWorks America, the selected 
education provider, to provide training specifically on pre and post-purchase home buyer 
education and financial education methods. 
 
To date, 1,066 Texas housing counselors have continued their education to either maintain or 
obtain their home buyer education certification as a result of training they received through 
TSHEP. During our tenure as the administrator or TSHEP, the Corporation trained 509 
counselors representing 237 organizations in 90 municipalities across Texas. 
 
2018 Implementation Plan and the Introduction of Housing Connection 
 
In August 2017 the Corporation decided to expand the scope of our training to include courses 
on real estate development and affordable housing financing in an effort to increase the 
capacity of nonprofits to produce affordable housing in Texas. We plan to continue to also offer 
home buyer and financial education.  TSAHC would not be able to expand the scope of trainings 
under TSHEP, so we opted to no longer administer TSHEP in 2018. 

The Corporation’s expanded training initiative is known as Housing Connection (formerly called 
Counselor Connection). The program’s goal is to and helps both affordable housing and 
counseling organizations access trainings, promote themselves, and build capacity.  
 
In 2018, the Corporation will provide one three-day training course for housing and financial 
counselors. In addition, the Corporation will also provide two one-day training sessions for 
organizations that currently or would like to develop and/or operate affordable housing. The 
courses will cover the following topics: credit counseling, real estate finance and creative 
development financing strategies. The Corporation, with support from private and public 
funders, will continue to make the training as affordable as possible by subsidizing tuition costs 



 

10 
 

and providing hotel scholarships for participants traveling from out of town. 
 
TEXAS HOUSING IMPACT FUND  
 
The Texas Housing Impact Fund (formerly known as the Direct Lending program) helps provide 
safe, decent, and affordable housing with an emphasis on serving rural and underserved 
communities by providing flexible financing options to affordable housing developers.  
 
Leveraging investments from private foundations and banks, the Corporation is able to provide 
both short-term and long-term affordable housing financing to developers through the Texas 
Housing Impact Fund. This funding model has enabled the Corporation to steadily grow the 
fund over time, with applications for new loans accepted on an ongoing basis, provided there is 
funding available for the program.  
 
To date, the Texas Housing Impact Fund has financed the construction or rehabilitation of 187 
single family homes and 1,901 rental units for low and moderate-income households. 
 
The Corporation currently offers three types of loans: 

 
§ Construction lines of credit for new single-family homes 
§ Revolving lines of credit for acquisition/rehabilitation of single-family homes 
§ Permanent financing for multifamily rental properties 

 
Single Family Construction/Rehabilitation 
 
Homeownership is the primary means by which lower-income households create stability and 
build wealth for the future. According to the most recent Federal Reserve’s Survey of Consumer 
Finances, the average net worth of a homeowner is 45 times that of the average net worth of a 
renter.15   
 
However, due to rising housing prices, many Texans cannot afford to purchase a home in their 
communities.  For example, according to the Real Estate Center at Texas A&M University, as of 
September 2017 the median home price statewide was more than $223,000, up from $209,900 
in September 2016. Escalating home prices are especially problematic in urban areas like Austin 
(median home price of $287,700), Dallas ($270,000) and Houston ($231,298).16  
 
By financing the construction or rehabilitation of single family homes that are affordable to 
well-qualified low and moderate-income home buyers, the Texas Housing Impact Fund is 
helping families and individuals achieve the dream of homeownership and build household 
wealth.  
 

                                                           
15 Source: “Why Homeownership Matters,” Forbes, August 12, 2016.  
16 Source: https://www.recenter.tamu.edu/data/housing-activity/, accessed November 13, 2017. 

https://www.recenter.tamu.edu/data/housing-activity/


 

11 
 

In 2017, affordable housing developers used financing from the Texas Housing Impact Fund to 
rehabilitate or construct six homes and 21 condominiums for low- to moderate-income home 
buyers.17   
 
Multifamily Construction/Rehabilitation 
 
The Corporation also recognizes that not all families and individuals are ready to become 
homeowners. Access to affordable and decent rental housing is what is most important to 
these households. By funding the construction or rehabilitation of affordable rental units, the 
Texas Housing Impact Fund helps households access safe and decent rental homes without 
having to sacrifice other basic needs, such as food, education or medical care. 
 
The Corporation’s Texas Housing Impact Fund generally targets smaller multifamily 
developments in rural areas and underserved communities. The average loan size for 
multifamily developments is $580,000, and the average number of units is 72. The Corporation 
did not award any Texas Housing Impact Fund loans for multifamily developments in 2017. 
 

Texas Housing Impact Fund Loan Production 
Loan Production 201718 2003 - 2016 

Loans Made 4 27 
# of Single Family Homes Built or 
Under Construction 

31 181 

# of Rental Units 60 1901 
Amount of Loan Funds Approved $2,045,000  $15,696,287  

 
2018 Implementation Plan 
 
The Corporation plans to continue to provide flexible lines of credit to developers in targeted 
areas.  These loan products, leveraged with the Corporation’s access to lower cost land 
through its Affordable Communities of Texas (ACT) land bank, will enable these developers to 
continue to construct and rehabilitate single family homes that are affordable for working 
families. 
 
Additionally, the Corporation plans to continue to explore lending opportunities in small and 
rural markets for multifamily developments, helping local developers meet the housing needs 
of their communities. The Corporation will also consider loans for urban areas, particularly in 
areas that are rapidly changing and risk losing affordable housing.   
 
In 2017, the Corporation released its first ever Texas Housing Impact Fund Investment Report 
                                                           
17 The six homes are located in Dallas, Houston, and Port Arthur, Texas. The 21 condominiums are part of The Chicon being developed 
in Austin, Texas by Chestnut Neighborhood Revitalization Corporation. 
18 2017 loans include new loans in the amount of $200,000 to Woman Inc.; $700,000 to Texas Housing Foundation for the Sagebrush 
Apartments.; and $695,000 to Accessible Housing Austin for the AHA! at Briarcliff Apartments. In addition, a line of credit for Legacy 
CDC was renewed in the amount of $450,000 for acquisition and rehab activities. 



 

12 
 

to document the statewide impact of the program. This report will enhance the Corporation’s 
efforts to market the Texas Housing Impact Fund to developers and potential investors. In 
2018, the Corporation will update the report and will continue that practice on an annual basis.   
 
AFFORDABLE COMMUNITIES OF TEXAS PROGRAM 
 
The Corporation created the Affordable Communities of Texas (ACT) Program, a land bank 
and land trust program, in 2008 to stabilize communities experiencing high rates of foreclosure. 
The Corporation works in partnership with 20 nonprofit organizations across the state to 
acquire and redevelop foreclosed homes, vacant land and tax foreclosed properties, and then 
sell or rent the homes to low-income families. 
 
To date, the Corporation has acquired 567 properties through the ACT program and has 
redeveloped 18319 of these properties. The ACT Program has a current portfolio of 269 lots and 
homes, and there are three active components of the program distinguished by source of 
funding and targeted use of properties (a fourth component ended in 2016): 
  
§ ACT Land Banking – This is the Corporation’s general land banking program that 

includes properties that are either purchased by the Corporation or donated to the 
Corporation. Properties are redeveloped for affordable housing. If a property is not 
suitable for redevelopment (i.e. poor location, high cost of redevelopment or other 
extenuating circumstances), the property is sold and the funds reinvested in the ACT 
Program. 

§ ACT Land Trust – Properties acquired are intended to be held in perpetuity by the 
Corporation. Homes built or redeveloped on land trust sites may be rented or sold to 
qualified low-income households. 

§ Texas NSP – This category includes those homes and properties that were acquired 
using Texas’s federal Neighborhood Stabilization Program (NSP) funding. 

§ Veterans Housing Initiative – This initiative was a partnership with Bank of America. 
The Corporation accepted higher value homes donated by Bank of America that were 
redeveloped and sold at a minimum 25% discount or donated mortgage-free to qualified 
U.S. military veterans in Texas. The Corporation sold 67 discounted homes and donated 
an additional 10 homes to veterans who are disabled and have low incomes.  This 
initiative ended in 2016, but one property remains in the portfolio. 

 
Affordable Communities of Texas Portfolio 

Program/Initiative Acquisitions 2017 Sales 2017 
Current 

Portfolio 
Current Asset 

Value 
ACT Land Banking 1 23 57 $716,209 
ACT Land Trust 0 0 1 $650,000 
ACT Vet 0 0 1 $33,210 
Texas NSP 0 20 204 $2,867,583 

                                                           
19 This includes properties that may still be under contract for sale and have a sale date but have not finalized a closing.  



 

13 
 

Totals 1 43 263 $4,267,002 
 
2018 Implementation Plan 
 
The ACT Program will continue to play an integral role in the Corporation’s overall affordable 
housing strategy. The Corporation plans to continue to form partnerships to acquire foreclosed 
and vacant properties, including working directly with local and regional governments. 
Additionally, the Corporation intends to continue working with its network of local partner 
developers to redevelop and sell properties currently in the ACT Program’s portfolio.  
 
In 2018, the Corporation will make a stronger push to find new local partners, particularly in 
areas of the state where the Corporation has land bank properties but does not have a local 
partner. Lastly, the Corporation will continue to focus on selling homes in the Texas NSP 
portfolio as quickly and efficiently as possible.  
 
 
 
MULTIFAMILY PRIVATE ACTIVITY BOND PROGRAM 
 
The Corporation uses its statutory authority to issue tax-exempt multifamily private activity 
bonds (PAB) to help affordable housing developers construct or preserve multifamily rental 
units. As a conduit issuer, the Corporation is allocated 10 percent of Texas’ multifamily PAB 
cap each year. 
 
The Corporation makes available to developers its multifamily PAB allocation through an 
annual Request for Proposal application process. To be considered for multifamily PAB 
financing, multifamily developments must meet specific housing needs identified each year 
by the Corporation’s Board of Directors. In 2017, those housing needs were:  
 
§ At-Risk Preservation and Rehabilitation of Existing Affordable Units 
§ Housing in Rural and Smaller Urban Markets  
§ Senior and Service Enriched Housing Developments  
§ Housing in Areas with Disaster Declarations  

 
In 2017, the Corporation issued or reserved $22,560,000 in multifamily PABs to construct or 
rehabilitate 212 affordable rental units in West Columbia, Texas and Glenn Heights, Texas.20 
 
2018 Implementation Plan 
 
The Corporation anticipates continued interest and growth in our PAB program due to the high 
number of affordable housing units needed to meet the demand. For example, research 

                                                           
20 The developments in these municipalities are Brooks Manor Apartments (West Columbia, TX) and Palladium Glenn Heights 
Apartments (Glenn Heights, TX). 



 

14 
 

conducted by the National Low Income Housing Coalition found that, in Texas, there are only 51 
units that are affordable for every 100 households that earn 50% or less of the average median 
income.21  
 
The Corporation plans to continue to address this ongoing demand for affordable multifamily 
housing by financing through the PAB program the construction and rehabilitation of additional 
rental units that are affordable to low and very low-income Texans.  
 
In 2018, the Corporation will place a stronger emphasis on preserving affordable housing in 
rural areas. The Corporation, the Federal Reserve Bank of Dallas, and other partners are 
launching a six-part Rural Housing Preservation Academy in January 2018 that will focus on 
how to preserve aging rural multifamily developments.  
 
Specifically, the academy will be focused on preserving the 69622 rural multifamily 
developments that were financed by the U.S. Department of Agriculture under its Section 514 
and 515 loan programs. Many of these developments face uncertain futures because of need 
for repair, maturing mortgages, or expiring rental assistance agreements. 
 
Private activity bonds may play a role in preserving the Section 515 rural rental developments. 
Moreover, the Corporation will evaluate what other resources it can provide, in collaboration 
with the Federal Reserve Bank of Dallas and other partners, to address housing needs in rural 
areas of the state. 
 
ASSET OVERSIGHT AND COMPLIANCE 
 
Asset oversight and compliance monitoring of multifamily properties financed through 
multifamily tax-exempt bonds is required by many bond issuers, including the Corporation. The 
Corporation also requires asset oversight and compliance monitoring of multifamily properties 
financed through our Texas Housing Impact Fund. The Corporation believes these reviews are 
one of the best ways to ensure properties are continuing to provide safe and decent affordable 
housing to their residents.  
 
Asset Oversight 
 
As part of the asset oversight review process, staff performs an annual on-site physical 
inspection of each property, monitors each property’s financial and physical health, and 
provides suggestions for improvement to property owners and managers.  Staff completes a 
report of each property and submits its reports to property owners, managers and other 
stakeholders. The reports are also available on the Corporation’s web site.  
 
                                                           
21 Source: “The Gap: A Shortage of Affordable Homes,” The National Low Income Housing Coalition, March 2017,  
http://nlihc.org/sites/default/files/Gap-Report_2017_interactive.pdf  
22 Source: https://catalog.data.gov/dataset/usda-rural-development-multifamily-section-515-rural-rental-housing-and-section-514-farm-l-
f2dd4  

http://nlihc.org/sites/default/files/Gap-Report_2017_interactive.pdf
https://catalog.data.gov/dataset/usda-rural-development-multifamily-section-515-rural-rental-housing-and-section-514-farm-l


 

15 
 

Compliance 
 
As part of the compliance review process, staff reviews tenant files on-site annually to ensure 
that property owners and managers are following the federal affordability requirements 
relating to the tax-exempt status of the bonds. Completed compliance reports are submitted to 
property owners, managers, and other stakeholders and are also available on the Corporation’s 
web site.  In addition, the Corporation manages an online reporting system that allows property 
managers to complete their monthly compliance reporting online.  Each month, staff monitors 
whether property owners and managers are providing the required number of affordable units 
to income-eligible households and that quality resident services are being provided. By 
monitoring this on a monthly basis, the Corporation helps ensure that property owners and 
managers are meeting all program requirements.   
 
In 2017, the Corporation performed asset oversight reviews for 30 properties, totaling 4,212 
units, and the Corporation performed compliance reviews for 29 properties, totaling 4,424 
units. These properties are either bond-financed or financed through the Texas Housing Impact 
Fund.  
 
2018 Implementation Plan 
 
The Corporation will continue to provide asset oversight and compliance monitoring services to 
the properties in its current bond and Texas Housing Impact Fund portfolios. In 2018, the 
Corporation anticipates adding two properties to the portfolio of bond-financed properties 
monitored by the Corporation’s staff.  
 
The Corporation will continue to review and update its policies and procedures as industry 
trends and changes in policy dictate. The Corporation will continue to closely monitor the 
financial health and physical condition of properties in its portfolio and offer specific strategies 
for improvement.  
 
SINGLE FAMILY RENTAL PROGRAM 
 
The cost of living in Austin continued to rise in 2017.  According to the Real Estate Center at 
Texas A&M University, the median home price in Austin was $287,700 as of September 2017.23 
The average monthly rent was $1,406 as of October 2017.24  These prices are simply 
unaffordable for many low-income Austin families. 
 
In May 2013, the Corporation created the Single Family Rental Program to provide eligible low-
income families with affordable, below-market rental homes in high opportunity 
neighborhoods in the Austin Metropolitan Statistical Area (MSA). 
 

                                                           
23 Source: See Footnote 15.  
24 Source: https://www.rentjungle.com/average-rent-in-austin-rent-trends/ (Accessed November 13, 2017) 

https://www.rentjungle.com/average-rent-in-austin-rent-trends/


 

16 
 

Homes available through the program are located in areas with higher than average median 
incomes, with access to good schools and other services nearby. The program has received an 
extraordinary number of applications from low-income families and individuals interested in 
renting a home available under the program.  
 
The program offers individuals and families that earn at or below 80% of the area median 
family income the opportunity to rent a home at significantly less than market rate rents. In 
addition to verifying income, the Corporation screens each applicant for rental, credit, and 
criminal history.  
 
At the beginning of 2017, the Corporation’s single family portfolio of purchased properties 
included 17 single family homes, one condominium and one duplex for a total of 20 rental 
properties. These are leased to qualifying, low-income families in the Austin MSA. The 
Corporation sold the condominium in 2017 and now has 19 total rental properties. 
 
 
 
 
MULTIFAMILY RENTAL PROGRAM 
 
In July 2015, the Corporation expanded its rental program by acquiring the Rollins Martin 
apartment complex in East Austin. The Rollins Martin apartment complex was originally 
financed as part of the federal low-income housing tax credit (LIHTC) program. It consists of 15 
three-bedroom apartment units, all of which are affordable for families earning at or below 
60% of the area median family income.   
 
The apartment complex located in East Austin is in a rapidly developing community that is 
quickly becoming unaffordable to its long-time lower-income residents. Research released in 
2016 revealed two trends for the census tract containing the Rollins Martin apartments. First, 
the average renter in the tract is cost-burdened (defined as spending more than 30% of their 
income on housing), and second, the number of cost burdened renters in the tract has gone up 
from 2010 to 2014.25  
 
By maintaining affordability in the rapidly changing neighborhood, the Corporation is meeting a 
critical housing need for the community. Beyond this, the Corporation has also made 
substantial improvements to the Rollins Martin apartment complex.  
 
In 2015, the Corporation installed new appliances, tankless water heaters and HVAC for each 
unit and new roofing and a fence for the complex. In 2016, the Corporation completely 
renovated three units and added new outdoor trash receptacles, a bike rack, and a surveillance 
system at the property. Additionally, the doors for the laundry area in each unit were 
expanded. In 2017, the Corporation renovated an additional three units. 

                                                           
25 Source: Michael Theis, “Charting Austin’s unaffordable rental landscape,” Austin Business Journal, November 4, 2016 



 

17 
 

 
2018 Implementation Plan 
 
The Corporation has no plans to purchase additional homes for the Single Family Rental 
program at this time. The Corporation will continue to manage the program to provide its 
tenants with affordable, safe rental homes in high opportunity areas of the Austin MSA.  

Remaining renovations for the Rollins Martin apartment complex include repairing the 
stairways and renovating the remaining nine units. In an effort to avoid tenant displacement, 
the remaining renovations will be done on a rolling basis once a unit becomes available after a 
tenant moves out.    
 
TEXAS FOUNDATIONS FUND 
 
History of the Texas Foundations Fund 
 
The Corporation created the Texas Foundations Fund to improve housing conditions for very 
low-income Texas households, with a particular emphasis on assisting persons with disabilities 
and rural communities. The Corporation defines very low-income households as households 
earning at or below 50% of the area median family income. 
 
Through the Texas Foundations Fund, the Corporation partners with nonprofit organizations 
across Texas to support quality programs that address the critical housing needs of very low-
income families and individuals. Selected partners receive grants to support their housing 
services. Since 2008, the Corporation has awarded more than $2.9 million in grants. 
 
The housing services listed below are eligible for support through the Texas Foundations Fund: 

· The rehabilitation and/or critical repair of owner-occupied, single family homes to 
remedy unsafe living conditions. Critical repairs may also include accessibility 
modifications to assist household members with a disability.  

· The provision of supportive housing services for residents of housing units owned by 
the applicant receiving funding. The services supported by the Texas Foundations Fund 
must help individuals and families at risk of homelessness or unnecessary 
institutionalization gain and/or maintain their housing stability. Eligible supportive 
housing services include, but are not limited to: the provision of alcohol and drug 
counseling, adult education and/or job training, mental health counseling, case 
management and services provided by a health care provider.  

 
The Corporation selected these services by conducting a survey asking its partner housing 
organizations to identify the greatest housing needs of the very low-income Texans they serve. 
 
The Corporation funds its Texas Foundations Fund awards by blending private donations with 
earned revenue from its other housing programs. The Corporation’s Board of Directors 



 

18 
 

determines the amount available for each funding round based on revenue and private funding 
received.  
 
Prior to each funding round, the Corporation publishes the Texas Foundations Fund Guidelines 
for public comment, giving stakeholders the opportunity to provide feedback prior to 
submitting a funding proposal.  
 
2016 Changes to the Texas Foundations Fund 
 
In 2016, the Corporation made the below four changes to the Texas Foundations Fund based on 
feedback received from past applicants in combination with internal deliberations and 
assistance from a third-party consultant.  
 

· First, partners are now selected for a two-year term through a simpler online application 
process. The Corporation’s Board of Directors gives final approval to selected partners.  

 
· Second, the Texas Foundations Fund now provides matching grants to the selected 

nonprofit partners for eligible public and private funds they raise for their qualified 
programs. The following funding types are eligible for matching grants:  individual 
donations, foundation grants, corporate grants or sponsorships, government grants, and 
in-kind donations of materials or professional services.  

 
· Third, in addition to serving households at or below 50% of the area median family 

income, partners must now utilize their matching grant to support households with a 
disability and/or households located in rural communities. 

 
· Lastly, the Corporation’s Board of Directors suspended the Corporation’s Advisory 

Council which had been tasked with vetting and approving grant applications. Since the 
application process is much simpler, there is no longer a need for Advisory Council 
review of the application process.  

 
2016-2017 Funding Cycle 
 
With these changes implemented, the Corporation selected 25 nonprofit partners for the 2016-
2017 funding cycle (partners are selected for two-year terms). In 2016, those 25 partners 
received $302,500 in matching grants and used the funding to serve 1,444 low-income Texans 
through supportive services and an additional 60 households with home repairs.  
 
The Corporation awarded $318,000 to the 25 nonprofit partners for 2017. In response to the 
devastation caused by Hurricane Harvey, the Corporation modified the 2017 grant agreements 
to allow nonprofit partners to serve households that were displaced or otherwise negatively 
affected by a federally declared disaster, in addition to households with a disability and rural 
communities. 
 



 

19 
 

2018 Implementation Plan 
 
For the 2018-2019 funding cycle, the Corporation will post proposed guidelines and ask for 
input from past grant applicants and the public. The Corporation will also continue to explore 
ways to increase the amount of funding available for the Texas Foundations Fund and to 
promote the program to more nonprofit partners.  
 
OTHER INTIATIVES 

Innovation Accelerator Program 

In 2016, the Corporation expanded efforts to address supportive housing needs beyond grant 
funding provided through Texas Foundations Fund. It did this by agreeing to partner with 
Health and Human Services Commission (HHS) in a Center for Medicaid Services Innovation 
Accelerator Program (IAP).  

The first goal of the IAP is to develop public and private partnerships between the Medicaid and 
housing systems to better address the housing and supportive services needs of the Medicaid 
recipient population. The second goal is to create a detailed action plan that seeks to foster 
additional community living opportunities for Medicaid beneficiaries.  

Through the IAP, HHS and the Corporation have determined that the specific populations the 
action plan will likely address are very similar to the individuals served by Texas Foundation 
Fund grants (individuals experiencing homelessness, individuals at risk of homelessness, and 
individuals unnecessarily institutionalized). The IAP kicked off in August 2017 and will end in 
April 2018 at which time the action plan is scheduled to be complete. 

General Homelessness Activities  

The Corporation continues to support other efforts addressing homelessness. This includes 
Advisory Member representation on the Texas Interagency Council for the Homeless (TICH) and 
serving as liaison between the TICH and United State Interagency Council on Homelessness. In 
addition, the Corporation sponsors the annual Texas Conference on Ending Homelessness 
hosted by the Texas Homeless Network. 

 



Tab 3 
 

Presentation, Discussion and Possible Approval of 
Action by the Corporation related to Texas 

Community Capital. 
 

Discussion 
 



TAB 4 



 

1 
 

2018 Texas Foundations Fund 
DRAFT Guidelines 

February 2018 
 

 
 
 
Texas Foundations Fund Overview 
Through its Texas Foundations Fund program, the Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation (TSAHC) 
partners with nonprofit organizations across Texas to support housing services that meet critical housing 
needs of very low-income households in Texas.  
 
Matching Grant Structure 
For the 2018 funding round, the Texas Foundations Fund will provide matching grants to eligible public 
and private funds raised by selected partners (“Partners”). Public and private funds must have been 
received by Partners on or after January 1, 2018  and must be earmarked specifically for the program for 
which a matching grant from the Texas Foundations Fund is requested. 
 
The following are eligible for matching grants: 

· Individual donations 
· Foundation grants 
· Corporate grants or sponsorships 
· Government grants 
· In-kind donations of materials or professional services (volunteer labor does not qualify for 

matching grants) 
 
2018 Partner Application Process 
Partners eligible for matching grants will be selected every two years through an online application 
process. The online application will be available on TSAHC’s website at www.tsahc.org in April 2018.  
Interested applicants should first complete an eligibility quiz to determine if they may qualify as a Partner. 
Only organizations that pass the eligibility quiz will be instructed to complete the online application. 
 
Partner applications must be submitted online no later than 5:00 pm on Friday, June 1, 2018. All 
applicants meeting certain threshold requirements will qualify as Partners and will be eligible for matching 
grants. 
 
After submitting an application, applicants may not contact members of TSAHC’s Board of Directors 
regarding their application. Failure to comply will result in the disqualification of the application. 
 
If an application contains deficiencies that require clarification or correction, TSAHC staff will contact the 
applicant directly to request clarification or correction of such deficiencies.  Failure to respond to follow 
up requests for information will result in the disqualification of an application. 
 
Partner Threshold Requirements 
To qualify as a Partner eligible for a matching grant, applicants must meet the following threshold 
requirements: 
 

1. Organization Type: Applicant must be a nonprofit organization with a 501(c)(3) designation 
from the Internal Revenue Service. 

http://www.tsahc.org


 

2 
 

2. Organization Experience: Applicant must have at least three years of experience operating 
housing programs in Texas. 

3. Program Experience: Applicant must have at least two years of experience operating the 
program for which a matching grant will be requested (see section below for additional 
program eligibility information). 

4. Fundraising Experience: Applicant must provide a letter of reference or support from a 
funder who has supported the program for which a matching grant will be requested. 

5. Government Grant Performance: Applicant must certify that it has not defaulted on or 
been required to repay  any federal, state or local government grants within the past two 
years. Applicants do not need to have prior experience with government grants to be eligible 
for a matching grant. 

6. Financial Requirements: Applicant must be able to provide annual financial audits for its 
two most recent fiscal years (TSAHC will accept financial reviews in lieu of audits from 
organizations with an annual operating budget of $750,000 or less) and must be prepared to 
submit its audits, as well as other financial documents, when requested. 

7. Household Requirements: To ensure the Texas Foundations Fund reaches those who are 
most in need, each applicant must utilize matching funds to serve only : 
a. Households at or below 50% of the area median family income (very low income)1, and 
b. Households with a household member with a disability, and/or households located in a 

rural community2. 
 
Eligible Programs 
Programs that provide the following housing services are eligible for a matching grant from the Texas 
Foundations Fund: 
 

1. The rehabilitation and/or critical repair of single family homes3  to remedy unsafe living 
conditions. 
· Critical repairs may also include accessibility modifications for homes with a household 

member with a disability. 
· Homes receiving repairs must be owner-occupied.  
· TSAHC will support the critical repair of single family rental homes owned and operated by 

the organization applying only if the repairs enhance accessibility for a renting household with 
an individual with a disability4 

                                                      
1 While an applicant’s program may serve households above this income level with other funding sources, a 
matching grant from the Texas Foundations Fund may only be used to serve households meeting this income 
requirement. TSAHC uses the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development’s Section 8 income limits to 
determine income eligibility for the Texas Foundations Fund program.  To review the current income limits, visit: 
www.huduser.org/portal/datasets/il.html 
2 TSAHC defines “rural” as a county that is outside a metropolitan statistical area (MSA), or a city or community 
that is: 1) outside the boundaries of an MSA; or 2) within the boundaries of an MSA, if it has a population of 25,000 
or less and does not share a boundary with an urban area (population larger than 25,000 within an MSA). 
3 TSAHC defines “single family home” as a residential property with an attached or detached dwelling that consists 
of (i) a single unit on an individual lot, or (ii) a single unit in a condo project, Planned Unit Development, or duplex, 
triplex or fourplex, or (iii) not more than four connected units, with each unit intended as housing for one family. 
Dwellings that are not titled as real estate, such as RVs and houseboats, are not eligible. 
4 In exceptional circumstances, TSAHC may allow a Partner to perform critical repairs on a rental home owned by a 
private landlord and occupied by a very low-income household.  Partners must notify TSAHC in advance if they 
wish to use a portion of their Texas Foundation Fund matching grant for this purpose.  Additional information, 
including documentation that the landlord is financially unable to perform the repairs, will be required. 

http://www.huduser.org/portal/datasets/il.html


 

3 
 

· All rehabilitation and/or critical repairs funded through the Texas Foundations Fund must be 
provided free of charge. 

 
2. The provision of supportive housing services that help individuals and families at risk of 

homelessness or unnecessary institutionalization gain and maintain their housing stability. 
Eligible supportive housing services include, but are not limited to:  
· the provision of alcohol and drug counseling, 
· adult education and/or job training, 
· mental health counseling, and/or 
· case management or services provided by a health care provider. 

 
Resident Services, such as afterschool tutoring programs and computer labs, are not considered 
supportive housing services and will not be eligible for a matching grant.  All supportive housing 
services funded through the Texas Foundations Fund must be provided free of charge to residents. 
Organizations that solely provide supportive services are not eligible for a matching grant. TSAHC 
will only consider organizations that own and operate housing with supportive services made 
available to the residents as a result of their occupancy.  

 
2018 Funding Availability and Timeline 
TSAHC provides the matching grants available through the Texas Foundations Fund by blending private 
donations with earned revenue from its affordable housing programs. TSAHC’s Board of Directors 
approves the funding available each year under the Texas Foundations Fund. While the total funding 
available for 2018 has not yet been determined, it is anticipated that at least $300,000 will be available this 
year.  The funding available to each Partner will depend both on the total funding available as determined 
by TSAHC’s Board of Directors and the number of Partners selected (estimated range $10,000-$30,000 
per year, per Partner). 
 
Please note that donors to the Texas Foundations Fund have the ability to request their funds be used 
within a specific city or region; as a result,depending on Partners’ service area(s), the maximum amount of  
funding available to each Partner may vary. 
 
It is anticipated that Partners will be announced and matching grants will become available in September 
2018. At that time, each Partner will have six months to access its matching grant.  Any funds not accessed 
during the initial six month period will be combined into a statewide pool and made available to other 
Partners on a first-come, first-awarded basis until all funds are depleted. TSAHC reserves the right to limit 
the total amount of funding available to each Partner from the statewide pool. 
 
All previous Texas Foundations Fund awardees are eligible to apply to be selected as a Partner for the 
2018 funding round, as long as they meet the Partner threshold requirements listed above and perfomed 
according to the grant agreement of  their most recent funding award.  

Partner Term and Disbursement of Grants 
Partners will be selected for a two-year term (“Partner Term”), with grant funding made available each 
year. To access matching grants, Partners must submit a funding request form provided by TSAHC that 
documents proof of public or private funds and proposed use of the matching grant.  A Partner may submit 
up to three funding requests during the initial six month period to access the full amount of its matching 
grant.  
 
A Partner must spend 100% of its matching grant and submit a report documenting use of the matching 
grant and updated financial information by the end of the first year of the Partner Term before accessing 
matching funds the following year. 



 

4 
 

 
Partner Agreement 
Partners will be required to execute a partner agreement that outlines:  

· a description of the program for which the matching grant will be used,  
· eligible expenditures5,  
· the process to request matching grants, 
· reporting requirements, and 
· TSAHC’s right to inspect properties or service records and to review financial documents.  

 
Failure to adhere to the terms of the partner agreement may result in the delay or cancelation of 
matching grants, termination of the partner agreement, or request for repayment of  all or part of 
the matching grants disbursed. 
 
Questions 
Questions should be submitted in writing to Michael Wilt by email at mwilt@tsahc.org. Applicants are 
highly encouraged to review the Texas Foundations Fund’s Question and Answer section of TSAHC’s 
website at www.tsahc.org for pertinent application information.  
 
 

                                                      
5 Partners must use 100% of their matching grant for direct costs to provide the program for which the matching 
grant is requested. These costs may include, but are not limited to, contractor fees, materials, salaries for staff 
performing critical repair work, salaries for staff providing supportive housing services, salaries for staff directly 
coordinating and supporting the program, travel expenses for staff directly coordinating and supporting the program, 
and building permits and inspection fees for homes to be repaired. The partner agreement will include a full list of 
expenses eligible for a matching grant. 

mailto:mwilt@tsahc.org
http://www.tsahc.org


TAB 5 



 

Texas Foundations Fund 

Special Disaster Recovery Round 
 
About the Texas Foundations Fund  

TSAHC created the Texas Foundations Fund program in 2008 specifically to improve the housing and 
financial stability of very low-income households in Texas.  The program provides grants to local nonprofits 
for home repairs and supportive housing services (such as case management, financial education, etc.) 

Hurricane Harvey Special Funding Round  

TSAHC would like to administer a one-time special round specifically to repair homes damaged by 
Hurricane Harvey. The funding would target homeowners who are either uninsured or underinsured and are 
not able to access federal funding or afford to make the necessary repairs themselves. 

The program will also target home repairs that alleviate health and safety issues within the homes, including 
(but not limited to) mold remediation, roof repairs, repairing broken windows and doors, repairing damaged 
electrical systems, and fixing cracked pipes and foundation issues caused by flood waters. TSAHC will 
administer the funding round in partnership with Enterprise Community Partners, who will provide 
additional funding for other disaster-related housing programs.  TSAHC and Enterprise Community Partners 
will also provide technical assistance to grantees. 

In early 2009, we administered a special funding round to repair homes damaged by Hurricanes Ike and 
Dolly. We will apply the lessons learned administering that funding round toward this special round.  

Application to the Rebuild Texas Fund 

TSAHC requests that the Board of Directors approve a $100,000 commitment to support the special funding 
round, to be leveraged as match for a potential grant from the Rebuild Texas Fund.  

TSAHC has applied for a $500,000 grant to the Rebuild Texas Fund to support critical repairs provided 
under the special funding round. The application is contingent upon a $100,000 commitment from TSAHC to 
match the grant provided by the Rebuild Texas Fund. If awarded, TSAHC will leverage the $500,000 
commitment from the Rebuild Texas Fund with the $100,000 commitment from TSAHC to administer a total 
of $600,000 to support critical repairs. TSAHC and Enterprise Community Partners will also seek additional 
funding partners to support the special funding round. 

About the Rebuild Texas Fund 

The Rebuild Texas Fund is a joint initiative of the Michael & Susan Dell Foundation and the OneStar 
Foundation. The Rebuild Texas Fund supports organizations making an impact in the following six focus 
areas: community and economic development; health; housing; education and childcare; transportation and 
workforce; and capital for rebuilding small businesses. Funding through the Rebuild Texas Fund will be 
provided to eligible nonprofit, government, corporate, and philanthropic organizations working on the 
ground in Texas communities, big and small, that have been affected by Hurricane Harvey. More 
information about the Rebuild Texas Fund is available at www.RebuildTX.org.  

http://www.RebuildTX.org


About Enterprise Community Partners 

Enterprise Community Partners is a proven and powerful nonprofit that improves communities and people’s 
lives by making well-designed homes affordable. Enterprise Community Partners brings together the 
nationwide know-how, partners, policy leadership and investments to multiply the impact of local affordable 
housing development. Over 35 years, Enterprise has created nearly 470,000 homes nationwide, invested 
$28.9 billion and touched millions of lives. More information is available at www.EnterpriseCommunity.org.  

http://www.EnterpriseCommunity.org


Tab 6 

Review, Discussion and Possible Approval of the 2017 Annual 
Performance Review of the President of the Corporation and 

related actions. 

 

 



Tab 7 

Closed Executive Session – Discussion regarding the 
Evaluation and Annual Performance Review of the President 

of the   Corporation 

 


	Agenda
	President's Report
	Tab A
	Tab B
	Tab C
	Tab D

	Tab 1
	Tab 2
	Tab 3
	Tab 4
	Tab 5
	Tab 6
	Tab 7

